
 

 
 

 

 
  

 
Public Employees  

Benefits Board  

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
June 9, 2022 



 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856  •  FAX 360-586-9511  •  TTY 711 

 

 
 

Public Employees Benefits Board 
June 9, 2022        Zoom Attendance Only 
9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.  
 
 
Health Care Authority 
Sue Crystal A & B 
626 8th Avenue SE 
Olympia, Washington 
 

Table of Contents 

Meeting Agenda ..................................................................................................................... 1-1 
 
Member List ............................................................................................................................ 1-2 
 
2022 Meeting Schedule .......................................................................................................... 1-3 
 
Board By-Laws ....................................................................................................................... 2-1 
 
Approval of Meeting Minutes .................................................................................................. 3-1 

June 9, 2021 
 
2023 Annual Procurement Update ......................................................................................... 4-1 
 
Uniform Medical Plan (UMP) RFR 2022 for Benefit Year 2023 .............................................. 5-1 
 
2023 PEBB Medicare Rates & Proposed Resolutions ............................................................ 6-1 
 
Policy and Rules Development ............................................................................................... 7-1 
 
Medicare Portfolio ................................................................................................................... 8-1 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

 

TAB 1 



 

 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 (TTY 711)  •  FAX 360-586-9551 

         AGENDA 
 

Public Employees Benefits Board  Subject to Section 5 of the Laws of 2022, Chapter 
June 9, 2022   115, also known as HB 1329, the Board has 
9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.    agreed this meeting will be held via Zoom 
       without a physical location. 
    
TO JOIN ZOOM MEETING – SEE INFORMATION BELOW  

     

9:00 a.m.* 
Welcome and 
Introductions 

 Sue Birch, Chair  
 

9:05 a.m.  Meeting Overview  
Dave Iseminger, Director 
Employees & Retirees Benefits (ERB) 
Division 

Information 

9:10 a.m. 
Approval of Meeting Minutes 

• June 9, 2021 
TAB 3 Sue Birch Action 

9:15 a.m. 
Follow up from May 12, 2022 

Meeting 
 

Dave Iseminger, Director 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

9:25 a.m. 
Transition to Executive 

Session 
  

Information/ 
Discussion 

9:30 a.m. Executive Session   
Information/ 
Discussion 

10:30 a.m. 
Break / Transition to Public 

Meeting 
   

10:40 a.m. 
2023 Annual Procurement 

Update 
TAB 4 

Beth Heston, PEBB ProcurementManager 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

11:10 a.m. 

Uniform Medical Plan (UMP) 

RFR 2022 for Benefit Year 

2023 

TAB 5 
Christine Davis, UMP Account Manager 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

11:25 a.m. 
2023 PEBB Medicare Rates 

& Proposed Resolutions 
TAB 6 

Sara Whitley, ERB Finance Unit Manager 
Molly Christie, Fiscal Information & Data 
Analyst, 
Financial Services Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

12:25 p.m. Break    

12:35 p.m. Policy & Rules Development TAB 7 
Stella Ng, Policy & Rules Coordinator 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

12:55 p.m. Medicare Portfolio TAB 8 
Ellen Wolfhagen, Senior Account Manager 
ERB Division 

Information/ 
Discussion 

1:25 p.m. Public Comment    

1:55 p.m. Closing  Sue Birch, Chair  

2:00 p.m. Adjourn    

*All Times Approximate 

 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 (TTY 711)  •  FAX 360-586-9551 

 
 
 
The Public Employees Benefits Board will meet Thursday, June 9, 2022.  All Board Members and attendees 
will attend this meeting virtually. 
 
The Board will consider all matters on the agenda plus any items that may normally come before them. 
 
Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(l), the Board will meet in in Executive Session to consider proprietary or 
confidential nonpublished information related to the development, acquisition, or implementation of state 
purchased health care services as provided in RCW 41.05.026.  The Executive Session will begin at 9:30 a.m. 
and conclude no later than 10:30 a.m. 
 
No “final action,” as defined in RCW 42.30.020(3), will be taken in the Executive Session. 
 
This notice is pursuant to the requirements of the Open Public Meeting Act, Chapter 42.30 RCW. 
 
To provide public comment by email, direct e-mail to:  board@hca.wa.gov.   
 
Materials posted at:  http://www.pebb.hca.wa.gov/board/ by close of business on June 6, 2022. 
----------------------- 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 

 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84699105569?pwd=V21tejFWaTM2aDRUeHVlN0xtYXltUT09 
 
Meeting ID: 846 9910 5569 
Passcode: 638216 
One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,84699105569#,,,,*638216# US (Tacoma) 
+16699006833,,84699105569#,,,,*638216# US (San Jose) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
Meeting ID: 846 9910 5569 
Passcode: 638216 
Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdfiqniMts 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
mailto:board@hca.wa.gov
http://www.pebb.hca.wa.gov/board/
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84699105569?pwd=V21tejFWaTM2aDRUeHVlN0xtYXltUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/84699105569?pwd=V21tejFWaTM2aDRUeHVlN0xtYXltUT09
https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kdfiqniMts


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856  •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

 
PEB Board Members 

 
Name  Representing 

 
Sue Birch, Director  Chair 
Health Care Authority 
626 8th Ave SE 
PO Box 42713 
Olympia WA  98504-2713 
V 360-725-2104 
sue.birch@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Leanne Kunze, Executive Director State Employees 
Washington Federation of State Employees 
1212 Jefferson ST, Suite 300 
Olympia WA  98501 
V 360-352-7603 
PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Elyette Weinstein State Retirees 
5000 Orvas CT SE 
Olympia WA  98501-4765 
V 360-705-8388 
PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov 
 
 
Tom MacRobert K-12 Retirees 
4527 Waldrick RD SE 
Olympia WA  98501 
V 360-264-4450 
PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Scott Nicholson, Deputy Assistant Director Benefits Management/Cost Containment 
State Human Resources 
Office of Financial Management 
PO Box 43113 
Olympia WA  98504-3113 
PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov 
 
 
 

 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://www.hca.wa.gov/
mailto:sue.birch@hca.wa.gov
mailto:PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov
mailto:PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov
mailto:PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov
mailto:PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856  •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

 

PEB Board Members 

 
Name  Representing 

 
Monica McLemore Benefits Management/Cost Containment 
10002 Aurora Ave N 
Seattle WA  98125 
V 510-239-7162 
PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
John Comerford* 
121 Vine ST Unit 1205 
Seattle, WA Benefits Management/Cost Containment 
V 206-625-3200 
PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov 
 
 
Harry Bossi Benefits Management/Cost Containment 
19619 23rd DR SE 
Bothell WA  98012 
V 360-689-9275 
PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov 

 
 
Legal Counsel 
Michael Tunick, Assistant Attorney General 
7141 Cleanwater DR SW 
PO Box 40124 
Olympia WA  98504-0124 
V 360-586-6495 
MichaelT4@atg.wa.gov 
 
 
 
*non-voting members 
 
5/31/22 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
mailto:PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov
mailto:PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov
mailto:PEBBoard@hca.wa.gov
mailto:MichaelT4@atg.wa.gov


 
 

PEB BOARD MEETING SCHEDULE 
 

2022 Public Employees Benefits (PEB) Board Meeting Schedule 
 

 
The PEB Board meetings will be held at the Health Care Authority, Sue Crystal Center, 
Rooms A & B, 626 8th Avenue SE, Olympia, WA 98501.   
 
 
January 26, 2022  (Board Retreat)  9:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 
 
March 10, 2022  -  9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.    
  
April 14, 2022  -  9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.    
  
May 12, 2022  -  9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.     
 
June 9, 2022  -  9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.    
 
June 30, 2022 – 9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.    
   
July 14, 2022  -  9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.     
 
July 20, 2022  -  9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.    
  
July 27, 2022  -  9:00 a.m. – 2:00 p.m.    
   
 
If you are a person with a disability and need a special accommodation, please contact 
Connie Bergener at 360-725-0856 
 
 
 
 
 
 
7/16/21 
 
 
 



 

 

TAB 2 



 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

 
PEB BOARD BY-LAWS 

 
ARTICLE I 

The Board and its Members 
 

1. Board Function—The Public Employees Benefits Board (hereinafter “the PEBB” or 
“Board”) is created pursuant to RCW 41.05.055 within the Health Care Authority; the 
PEBB’s function is to design and approve insurance benefit plans and establish 
eligibility criteria for participation in insurance benefit plans for Higher Education and 
State employees, State retirees, and school retirees. 

 
2. Staff—Health Care Authority staff shall serve as staff to the Board. 

 
3. Appointment—The Members of the Board shall be appointed by the Governor in 

accordance with RCW 41.05.055.  Board Members shall serve two-year terms.  A 
Member whose term has expired but whose successor has not been appointed by the 
Governor may continue to serve until replaced. 

 
4. Non-Voting Member—There shall be one non-voting Members appointed by the 

Governor because of their experience in health benefit management and cost 
containment. 

 
5. Privileges of Non-Voting Member—The non-voting Member shall enjoy all the privileges 

of Board membership, except voting, including the right to sit with the Board, participate 
in discussions, and make and second motions.  

 
6. Board Compensation—Members of the Board shall be compensated in accordance with 

RCW 43.03.250 and shall be reimbursed for their travel expenses while on official 
business in accordance with RCW 43.03.050 and 43.03.060. 

 
 

ARTICLE II 
Board Officers and Duties 

 

1. Chair of the Board—The Health Care Authority Administrator shall serve as Chair of the 
Board and shall preside at all meetings of the Board and shall have all powers and 
duties conferred by law and the Board’s By-laws.  If the Chair cannot attend a regular or 
special meeting, he or she shall designate a Chair Pro-Tem to preside during such 
meeting. 

 
2. Other Officers—(reserved) 

 

 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://www.hca.wa.gov/
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.03.250
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.03.050
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=43.03.060


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
 

ARTICLE III 
Board Committees 

 

 
(RESERVED) 

 
 

ARTICLE IV 
Board Meetings 

 
1. Application of Open Public Meetings Act—Meetings of the Board shall be at the call of 

the Chair and shall be held at such time, place, and manner to efficiently carry out the 
Board’s duties.  All Board meetings, except executive sessions as permitted by law, 
shall be conducted in accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, Chapter 42.30 
RCW. 

 
2. Regular and Special Board Meetings—The Chair shall propose an annual schedule of 

regular Board meetings.  The schedule of regular Board meetings, and any changes to 
the schedule, shall be filed with the State Code Reviser’s Office in accordance with 
RCW 42.30.075.  The Chair may cancel a regular Board meeting at his or her 
discretion, including the lack of sufficient agenda items.  The Chair may call a special 
meeting of the Board at any time and proper notice must be given of a special meeting 
as provided by the Open Public Meetings Act, RCW 42.30. 

 
3. No Conditions for Attendance—A member of the public is not required to register his or 

her name or provide other information as a condition of attendance at a Board meeting.  
 

4. Public Access—Board meetings shall be held in a location that provides reasonable 
access to the public including the use of accessible facilities. 

 
5. Meeting Minutes and Agendas—The agenda for an upcoming meeting shall be made 

available to the Board and the interested members of the public at least 24 hours prior 
to the meeting date or as otherwise required by the Open Public Meetings Act.   
 
Agendas may be sent by electronic mail and shall also be posted on the HCA website.  
An audio recording (or other generally accepted electronic recording) shall be made of 
the meeting.  HCA staff will provide minutes summarizing each meeting from the audio 
recording.  Summary minutes shall be provided to the Board for review and adoption at 
a subsequent Board meeting. 

 
6. Attendance—Board Members shall inform the Chair with as much notice as possible if 

unable to attend a scheduled Board meeting.  Board staff preparing the minutes shall 
record the attendance of Board Members at the meeting for the minutes. 

 
 
 

 
 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
ARTICLE V 

Meeting Procedures 
 

1. Quorum—Five voting members of the Board shall constitute a quorum for the 
transaction of business.  No final action may be taken in the absence of a quorum.  The 
Chair may declare a meeting adjourned in the absence of a quorum necessary to 
transact business. 

 
2. Order of Business—The order of business shall be determined by the agenda. 

 
3. Teleconference Permitted—A Board Member may attend a meeting in person or, by 

special arrangement and advance notice to the Chair, by telephone conference call, or 
video conference when in-person attendance is impracticable.    

 
4. Public Testimony—The Board actively seeks input from the public at large, from 

enrollees served by the PEBB Program, and from other interested parties.  Time is 
reserved for public testimony at each regular meeting, generally at the end of the 
agenda.  At the direction of the Chair, public testimony at Board meetings may also 
occur in conjunction with a public hearing or during the Board’s consideration of a 
specific agenda item.  The Chair has authority to limit the time for public testimony, 
including the time allotted to each speaker, depending on the time available and the 
number of persons wishing to speak. 

 
5. Motions and Resolutions—All actions of the Board shall be expressed by motion or 

resolution.  No motion or resolution shall have effect unless passed by the affirmative 
votes of a majority of the Board Members present and eligible to vote, or in the case of 
a proposed amendment to the By-laws, a 2/3 majority of the Board.   

 
6. Representing the Board’s Position on an Issue—No Board Member may endorse or 

oppose an issue purporting to represent the Board or the opinion of the Board on an 
issue unless the majority of the Board approve of such position. 

 
7. Manner of Voting—On motions, resolutions, or other matters a voice vote may be used.  

At the discretion of the Chair, or upon request of a Board Member, a roll call vote may 
be conducted.  Proxy votes are not permitted, but the prohibition of proxy votes does 
not prevent a Chair Pro-Tem designated by the Health Care Authority Director from 
voting. 

 
8. Parliamentary Procedure—All rules of order not provided for in these By-laws shall be 

determined in accordance with the most current edition of Robert’s Rules of Order.  
Board staff shall provide a copy of Robert’s Rules at all Board meetings. 

 
9. Civility—While engaged in Board duties, Board Members’ conduct shall demonstrate 

civility, respect, and courtesy toward each other, HCA staff, and the public and shall be 
guided by fundamental tenets of integrity and fairness.  

 
10. State Ethics Law and Recusal—Board Members are subject to the requirements of the 

Ethics in Public Service Act, Chapter 42.52 RCW.  A Board Member shall recuse 
himself or herself from casting a vote as necessary to comply with the Ethics in Public 
Service Act. 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

PO Box 42713  •  Olympia, Washington 98504-2713  •  www.hca.wa.gov  •  360-725-0856 •  FAX 360-586-9551  •  TTY 711 

 
ARTICLE VI 

Amendments to the By-Laws and Rules of Construction 
 

1. Two-thirds majority required to amend—The PEBB By-laws may be amended upon a 
two-thirds (2/3) majority vote of the Board. 

 
2. Liberal construction—All rules and procedures in these By-laws shall be liberally 

construed so that the public’s health, safety and welfare shall be secured in accordance 
with the intents and purposes of applicable State laws and regulations. 

 
 
 
 
 
Last Revised July 15, 2020 

http://www.hca.wa.gov/


 

 

TAB 3 



 

1 
 

 
 

Draft 
Public Employees Benefits Board 

Meeting Minutes 

 
 
June 9, 2021 
Health Care Authority 
Sue Crystal Rooms A & B 
Olympia, Washington 
12:00 p.m. – 3:30 p.m. 
 
The Briefing Book with the complete presentations can be found at:  
https://www.hca.wa.gov/about-hca/public-employees-benefits-board-pebb-
program/meetings-and-materials 
 
Members Present via Phone 
Sue Birch, Chair 
Elyette Weinstein 
Tom MacRobert 
Leanne Kunze 
Yvonne Tate 
John Comerford 
Scott Nicholson 
Harry Bossi 
 
 
PEB Board Counsel 
Michael Tunick 
 
 
Call to Order 
Sue Birch, Chair, called the meeting to order at 12:02 p.m.  Sufficient members were 
present to allow a quorum.  Board introductions followed.  Due to COVID-19 and the 
Governor's Proclamation 20-28, the meeting was telephonic only.     
 

Meeting Overview  
Dave Iseminger, Director, Employees and Retirees Benefits (ERB) Division, provided 
an overview of the agenda.   
 
Today’s Washington communities highlighted are Pend Oreille County, Stevens County, 
and Ferry County.  Between the PEBB and SEBB Programs, in Pend Oreille we serve a 
little over 8% of the population; and similar levels, 8% and 7%, in neighboring Stevens 
and Ferry Counties.  For Medicaid, it's roughly 30% to 32% of each county population 
served.  Roughly 40% of the residents in this three-county region are served by 
programs at the Health Care Authority.  
 

https://www.hca.wa.gov/about-hca/public-employees-benefits-board-pebb-program/meetings-and-materials
https://www.hca.wa.gov/about-hca/public-employees-benefits-board-pebb-program/meetings-and-materials


 

2 
 

In this region there are noticeably higher rates of the residents living in poverty in each 
county, generally somewhere between 20% to 25% in each county, whereas the 
statewide average is 15%.  There is a slightly lower than average rate of 
unemployment, between 6% and 7% in each county, whereas the statewide average is 
around 8%.  There is a higher percent of uninsured individuals in the region, between 
7% and 7.5% in each county, whereas the statewide average is a little over 5%.   
 
Approximately 60% to 65% of the entire population in the three-county region is covered 
in some way by either Medicare or Medicaid, which heavily influence provider rates in 
the region.  
 
While all three counties are considered rural, there are noticeable referral and utilization 
patterns from Stevens County to the Spokane region.  We also see a lot of referral 
patterns from the Pend Oreille and Stevens County area into the Idaho panhandle for 
non-primary care services.  
 
A long-standing challenge in northeast Washington is the recruitment of physicians, 
Advanced Registered Nurse Practitioners (ARNP), causing lower access to primary 
care rates in that part of the state.  It's estimated that roughly a third to a half of the 
population of this region doesn’t have easy access to a large grocery store in their 
community.  HCA is in the business of providing access to quality health care, but there 
are all these other factors influencing our members’ lives daily.  It was a stark feature I 
learned about this region as I’ve gone on this journey of highlighting communities we 
serve.  It highlights some of the challenges that exist in different parts of our state.  
 
We acknowledge our meeting is being supported physically here in Olympia on the 
traditional territory of the Coast Salish people.  This area was a primary portage way to 
and from the Puget Sound.  These lands were shared by several tribes, including the 
ones known today as the Squaxin Island Tribe and the Nisqually Tribe.  HCA honors 
and thanks their ancestors and leaders who have been stewards of these lands and 
waters since time immemorial.  
 
Follow Up from May 12, 2021 Meeting 
Dave Iseminger, Director, ERB Division responded to a question from the May 
meeting.  There will be answers to other questions either today in later presentations or 
at a future meeting.     
 
Slide 2 – May 2021 Medicare Member Enrollment responds to a general question of the 
current enrollment.  This slide provides that information.  It includes subscribers and 
their dependents as of May 2021.   
 
Slide 3 – Medicare Out-of-pocket Maximums are listed. 
 
Executive Session 
Pursuant to RCW 42.30.110(1)(1), the Board met in Executive Session to consider 
proprietary or confidential nonpublished information related to the development, 
acquisition, or implementation of state purchased healthcare services as provided in 
RCW 41.05.026.   
 
Back to Public Meeting 



 

3 
 

2022 Annual Procurement Update 
Beth Heston, PEBB Procurement Manager and Kaiser Account Manager, discussed 
proposed changes to PEBB’s medical benefits for 2022. 
 
Slide 2 – Medical Procurement Work Plan lays out the annual procurement process 
culminating in a final vote on the renewal in July.   
 
Slide 3 – Changes for All PEBB Consumer Directed Health Plans (CDHPs).  There is a 
change for all subscribers.  Kaiser Northwest, Kaiser Washington, and UMP all three 
offer a CDHP.  The IRS usually announces changes to high-deductible health plans 
after HCA begins the renewal process and rate negotiations and we expected to see an 
increase to the minimum deductible.  However, the IRS left the minimum deductible for 
CDHPs the same.  No change has been made to minimum deductible for the CDHP 
since its introduction in 2014.  HCA anticipates the minimum deductible topic for the 
CDHPs to be in next year’s procurement process.  Instead, we are announcing the 
annual maximum a member may contribute to their Health Savings Account is being 
raised for 2022, increasing to $3,650 for subscriber-only accounts and $7,300 for all 
other tiers.  That is approximately $50 for single subscribers and $100 for all other tiers.  
 
Dave Iseminger: It can be confusing to know who gets to vote on what and who gets to 
make what decision when.  This is one we’re telling the Board about because the 
authority for making this change is in the Cafeteria Plan, which the agency is charged 
under state law to administer.  There will be no vote by the Board on this change 
because it’s the agency’s responsibility to manage this part of the portfolio.    
 
Beth Heston: Slide 5 – Uniform Medical Plan (UMP) 2022 Proposed Benefit Changes.   
The first proposed change is mental health parity and addiction, in response to a law 
passed in 2008 that had multiple modifications over time.  All plans in the HCA portfolio 
are required to meet parity and continually assess and make changes as interpretant to 
the requirements that evolve.   We are removing coinsurance for the mental health and 
substance use disorder inpatient professional services in UMP Classic, Select, and 
UMP Plus.  No change needed for the UMP High Deductible.  As a result of our most 
recent review to meet parity, we’re removing inpatient physician coinsurance for 
network facilities for all plans except UMP High Deductible.  Bullet #2 - removing the 
coinsurance, does not apply to facility fees. 
 
Dave Iseminger: This is informational.  There won’t be a Board vote because it’s 
required by federal law and HCA is required to comply.  We are implementing the 
minimum requirement to comply with other laws.   
 
Beth Heston: Slide 6 – UMP 2022 Proposed Benefit Changes (cont.) – UMP 
Accumulators.  UMP accumulators are a matter for Board approval.  A medical 
insurance accumulator is a running total of money a member has paid towards out-of-
pocket maximum for covered services.  It includes copays, coinsurance, and other 
health care costs outside of monthly premium payments.  Accumulators also count 
towards the number of allowed provider visits within a calendar year.  Currently, when a 
member changes plans during a special open enrollment, their accumulators do not 
follow them when they switch to a different Uniform Medical plan.  HCA is 
recommending the Board allow accumulator rollovers between Uniform Medical plans. 



 

4 
 

This benefits the member going through a special open enrollment and it aligns with our 
fully insured plans.  
 
Slide 7 – Proposed Resolution PEBB 2021-16 UMP Accumulators.  This change 
requires action from the Board.   
 
Dave Iseminger: I want to highlight the distinguishing part of this resolution, which is 
this is only for UMP plan changes within the PEBB Program.  HCA administers two 
programs, PEBB and SEBB, and they both have Uniform Medical Plan options.  This 
accumulator rollover is if you’re switching UMP plans within the PEBB Program.  If, 
because of your marriage to your school employee spouse, you decide to waive your 
UMP coverage in PEBB and go into SEBB, the accumulators don’t cross programs.  
We’ll be able to evaluate that cross-program accumulator question another day, but we 
wanted to recommend resolving the internal program situation now.  
 
Beth Heston: Slide 8 – Proposed Change to UMP Plus – Puget Sound High Value 
Network.  There are two UMP Plus providers, the Puget Sound High Value Network and 
the University of Washington Medicine Network.  Today, we’re talking about Puget 
Sound High Value.  For 2022, they will no longer be in Thurston County.  There are 
issues with provider contracts, adult primary care contracting was challenging, and 
recently ownership relationships have shifted towards the UW Medicine UMP Plus 
Network.  This change impacts about 472 members in the PEBB Program.  
 
Slide 9 – Proposed Change to UMP Plus – Puget Sound High Value Network (cont.).  
There will be a robust communications plan in place to let those members know of the 
changes so they can switch coverage during open enrollment.  Other available plans in 
Thurston County include UMP Classic, CDHP Plus with the UW Network, and UMP 
Select, as well as Kaiser Washington Classic CDHP, Value, and SoundChoice.  
 
Slide 10 – 2022 UMP Plus Network Coverage.  This slide is a map of the new coverage 
network.   
 
Slide 11 – UMP Coverage.  This map shows the entirety of the coverage for the Uniform 
Medical Plan in the state of Washington. 
 
Slide 13 – KPNW 2022 Proposed  Benefit Changes – Naturopathy benefits.  Kaiser 
Northwest is fully insured and like an HMO plan.  It offers services in Clark and Cowlitz 
Counties in Southwest Washington and some counties in Oregon.  The change begins 
with an alternative health bundle that Kaiser Northwest is offering, which changes 
benefits around naturopathy, acupuncture, massage, and rehabilitation therapies. This 
will allow members more autonomy in choosing and using those benefits and is part of 
the core benefit of the base plan for Kaiser Northwest.  This slide shows the changes to 
the naturopathy benefits for 2022.  There is not currently a dollar maximum per year in 
PEBB, but in SEBB the massage and naturopathy share a $1,000 maximum deductible 
limit.  Many members prefer to have naturopathic providers for the primary care they are 
permitted to get from those kinds of providers.  
 
Slide 14 – KPNW 2022 Proposed Benefit Changes (cont.) – Acupuncture benefits.  
Currently acupuncture is physician-referred only with unlimited visits, and it’s a specialty 
care copay of $35.  Kaiser is proposing to add self-referral 12 visits per year with the 



 

5 
 

specialty copay of $35.  In addition to a physician referral, you also have 12 visits that 
you can choose yourself. 
 
Slide 15 - KPNW 2022 Proposed Benefit Changes (cont.) – Massage benefits.  Kaiser 
Northwest has not offered covered massage therapy under the PEBB Program.  This 
year, they are suggesting we add a massage benefit to all our plans as part of the 
bundle.  The combined amount is in the SEBB Program.  
 
Slide 16 - KPNW 2022 Proposed Benefit Changes (cont.) – Rehabilitation services.  
This will allow self-referrals and will no longer require prior authorization. There will be 
outpatient physical, speech, and occupational therapies combined into a 60-visit per-
plan-year limit with a $35 copay.    
 
Slide 17 - KPNW 2022 Proposed Benefit Changes (cont.) – Dental services for potential 
transplant recipients.  This dental services change is provided under the medical 
benefit.  The focus is changing dental services allowed for potential transplant 
recipients.  Effective January 1, 2022, Kaiser Permanente will begin to cover under the 
member’s health plan a common set of routine dental services for members who are 
potential transplant recipients and require pre-transplant dental evaluation and 
clearance before being placed on the transplant waitlist.  
 
Slide 19 - Kaiser Washington has proposed adding home-infusion therapy to their plans. 
Associated medication costs will still apply, but the administrative costs will be waived. 
To receive the network benefits for the administrative selected infusion medications at 
home, the member must get the specialty medication through the KPWA home infusion 
pharmacy.  They’ll receive services through a preferred home infusion provider and/or 
network of home infusion providers, which is the health plan that contracts with them 
directly.  You must get it from a Kaiser-approved provider, the specialty home infusion 
formulary, and get it mailed to the house.  Out-of-network providers will not be covered 
under this proposed benefit change.  For CDHP members, the annual deductible must 
be met before the coinsurance can be waived. 
 
Slide 20 – KPWA 2022 Proposed Benefit Changes (cont.).  This change is to remove  
cost shares for two urine drug screenings per plan year.   
 
Slide 22 – Kaiser 2022 Service Areas – No Changes.  There are no changes to service 
area this year.   
 
Tom MacRobert: I want to go back to the alternative care proposals.  I’m not familiar 
anymore with Kaiser Permanente.  Once upon a time, I was a member when it was 
Springfield’s.  If my recollection serves me, for example, to go to a massage therapist, 
you used to have to be somebody that was in-house at the Group Health facility.  With 
all these naturopathic doctors, massage therapists, acupuncturists, physical therapists, 
chiropractors, how is that network going to work?  Is it something like what we have with 
Uniform Medical where you can go remote?. 
 
Beth Heston: No, Tom.  First, it’s not Kaiser Washington, it’s Kaiser Northwest.  It’s just 
two southern Washington counties.  And because KP Northwest is an HMO-like plan, 
you must go to in-network providers.  They have a contracted provider for massage, 
acupuncture, and chiropractor.  If you call Kaiser, they’ll be able to set you up with an in-



 

6 
 

network massage therapist or acupuncturist, but you cannot go to someone outside the 
network and get it covered.  That’s the way with all their benefits, as well.  On the SEBB 
side, we have Kaiser Washington that offers several PPO plans.  But in the PEBB 
portfolio, those are all HMOs, so you must stay in-network to get coverage.     
 
Tom MacRobert:  Okay, thank you. 
 
Beth Heston: Tom asked to compare the Kaiser Northwest coverage for providers to 
the UMP coverage where there were lots of providers.  That’s what I was explaining.  
You must be in-network, and they have those providers through contracts.  They do 
have some Kaiser-employed providers. 
 
Tom MacRobert:  Thank you. 
 
Dave Iseminger: Thank you, Beth. 
 
2022 PEBB Medicare Rates 
Tanya Deuel, ERB Finance Manager, Financial Services; Sara Whitley, Fiscal 
Information and Data Analyst, Financial Services; and Ryan Pistoresi, Assistant Chief 
Pharmacy Officer, CQCT Division.   
 
Sara Whitley: Today we will review the various types of Medicare plans that exist within 
the PEBB portfolio of plan offerings.  Slide 2 – Medicare & the PEBB Portfolio.  This 
slide was presented last year and provides a good foundation for future slides in this 
presentation.  Listed are: 1) Coordination of Benefits (COB) with Original Medicare 
(UMP Classic Medicare); 2) Medicare Advantage (Kaiser WA and Kaiser NW MA); 3) 
Medicare Advantage Plus Part D (UHC MA-PD Plans); and 4) Medicare Supplement 
(Premera Plans F &G). 
 
1) The coordination of benefit with Original Medicare, which you will hear me refer to 
often as a COB plan, coordinates payment of medical claims with Original Medicare.  In 
Original Medicare, it’s defined as Medicare Part A or Hospital and Patient coverage, and 
Medicare Part B Outpatient or Professional coverage.  Medicare is the primary payor of 
medical claims for the course due to medical benefits, and UMP pays any remaining 
claim amount which often leads the retiree enrolled in the Uniform Medical Classic Plan 
with very minimal to no out-of-pocket cost for their medical portion of the benefit. 
Pharmacy claims, on the other hand, are not coordinated with Original Medicare and 
UMP is the only payor for our pharmacy claims in the pharmacy portion of the benefit.  
 
2) Moving to the Medicare Advantage box, Medicare Advantage plans are reflected in 
our portfolio via our KP Washington and KP Northwest Medicare Advantage Plans. 
Medicare Advantage Plans and group coverage for all benefits that are covered under 
Original Medicare, and rather than coordination of claims payments, the plans receive 
risk adjusted federal subsidy dollars from CMS to administer the medical portion of the 
benefits.  These types of plans are popular options among retirees interested in 
alternative benefit offerings that aren’t traditionally covered by original Medicare, such 
as gym memberships, over-the-counter drug offerings, world-wide travel benefits, some 
supplemental benefits that aren’t included as part of the core medical benefit offering. 
The Kaiser MA plans also include creditable drug coverage for the pharmacy portion of 
the benefit.   



 

7 
 

Creditable drug coverage is defined as drug coverage that is at least as rich as a 
Medicare Part D benefit, and HCA receives retire drug subsidy (RDS) dollars for plans 
that administer pharmacy benefits under creditable drug coverage for our members.  
These RDS dollars are deposited into the state general fund.  
 
3) Medicare Advantage Plus Part D plans or MA-PD plans are reflected by the new 
UnitedHealthcare PEBB Balance and PEBB Complete plans, which went live as of 
January 1, 2021.  Like the MA Plan type just discussed, MA-PD plans also receive 
federal subsidy dollars for the medical portion of the benefit, but they receive additional 
revenue for the Part D portion of the benefit, as well.  These subsidies and revenues 
include drug manufacturer discounts, rebates, and CMS reinsurance revenue for high-
cost claimants.    
 
4) Our Medicare Supplement Plans or Medigap plans are represented in our portfolio by 
Premera Plans F and G.  Supplement plans are intended to help Medicare members 
cover the out-of-pocket costs associated with Original Medicare.  There’s no underlying 
benefit design, and these plans do not include drug coverage.   
 
Slide 3 – PEBB Medicare Portfolio.  This slide provides a graphical illustration of 
everything we just covered.  The Medicare explicit subsidy applies to all members 
enrolled in our Medicare plan offerings.  It’s currently proposed at $183 or 50% of the 
retiree’s premium, whichever is less.   
 
The medical portion of the benefit, UMP Classic is a COB plan.  KP Washington, KP 
Northwest, and the United plans are Medicare Advantage offerings.  The Medicare 
Supplement plans are often referred to as Medigap plans to help cover the member cost 
share associated with Original Medicare.  
 
The pharmacy portion of the benefit, UMP Classic and the KP Washington and KP 
Northwest Medicare Advantage offerings include creditable drug coverage for which 
HCA receives RDS revenue.  The UHC MA-PD plan features Part D drug coverage 
which was designed and customized for our PEBB Program members specifically.  The 
supplement plans do not offer drug coverage.  The first two slides are intended as an 
overview of the types of offerings included in the PEBB portfolio.   
 
Slide 4 – Retiree Enrollment Summary gives the retiree enrollment summary across our 
plans for the 2022 plan enrollment.  The majority of our plan enrollment resides in the 
UMP Classic Medicare offering with just under 50% of our members enrolled in that 
plan, followed next by the KP Washington Medicare offering.  Typically, when we speak 
to the KP Washington Medicare offerings, we generally refer to the Medicare Advantage 
plan.  However, KP Washington does offer a COB-type plan that operates in the 
background.  KP Washington Medicare plans are only offered in a handful of counties 
across the state, some of which don’t feature the MA product.  Therefore, when a 
member selects the KP Washington plan offering, Kaiser enrolls them in the plan that 
applies to their county of residence.  There is a small portion of our KP Washington 
members enrolled in their Original Medicare plan.  As of May, I believe it was around 
2,500 members, but the majority of them reside in the KP Washington Medicare 
Advantage offering with about 21,000 members.  
 



 

8 
 

Another highlight I did want to point out is we did get modest enrollment into the new 
United plan with just over 2,000 members switching into these plans.  We hope to see 
additional members switching to these plans when in-person benefit fairs become 
available.  Retirees prefer that one-on-one aspect of being in-person asking questions 
and feeling confident in their decisions.   
 
John Comerford: Can you go back to the last slide?  When you look at these various 
plans, can you tell me off the top of your head what the total cost is on each of these 
plans relatively? 
 
Sara Whitley: John, when you say total cost, do you mean cost to the state in terms of 
the Medicare explicit subsidy or cost to the member? 
 
John Comerford: I’ve seen the explicit subsidy, but the difference between the explicit 
subsidy and the actual cost of the plan per employee. 
 
Sara Whitley: Tanya is actually going to walk through that in just a moment.  We have a 
table to outline the total plan cost, the Medicare explicit subsidy, and the retiree 
premium.   
 
John Comerford: I’ve had talks with David before about this on the private side.  It 
seems a lot less costly than it does on the public side.  I’ll look forward to listening to 
this.  
 
Tom MacRobert: I’m curious if you could explain.  You say that UMP and Kaiser have 
what you call creditable drug coverage and UnitedHealthcare has Part D drug coverage. 
Can you explain what the difference is? 
 
Sara Whitley: Creditable drug coverage is pharmacy coverage for a Medicare plan that 
is defined by Part D, it’s as rich as Part D drug coverage.  That’s how HCA is eligible for 
the retiree drug subsidy.  We’re in full control of the formulary, member cost share, and 
how the pharmacy benefit is structured.  Part D plans are certified by CMS as a Part D 
plan and eligible to receive the subsidies they receive to administer the plan.  There is a 
unique structural difference and I think Ryan can provide additional detail on top of what 
I just described. 
 
Ryan Pistoresi: I can look into it and see if I can provide a little more information about 
how that “as rich as” is defined by CMS.  
 
Tom MacRobert:  Thank you. 
 
Dave Iseminger: One other piece is my understanding of creditable drug coverage is 
it’s at least as rich as Part D.  It can be richer, and I believe as we peel back that onion 
layer, we’ll find that UMP is richer than Part D coverage.   
 
Sara Whitley: Yes, and to clarify even further, that’s the Standard Part D coverage.  
When we talk about the Part D coverage that’s included as part of the United plan, the 
formulary and the benefit were customized for our members as an employer group plan, 
which gives us that room to customize for our members.  The formulary was based off 
the UMP Classic formulary so there should be very little deviation from that formulary.  



 

9 
 

The cost shares were also developed to mirror what our retirees are experiencing in 
UMP Classic.  When we say, “as rich as” Part D drug coverage, we’re talking about 
Standard Part D drug coverage, not necessarily what our members are receiving under 
the MA-PD plan because we’ve negotiated the formulary and customized that portion of 
the benefit for our members specifically.   
 
Elyette Weinstein:  How did the federal government justify giving a subsidy to private 
plans that self-insured government plans don’t have?    
 
Ryan Pistoresi: This is going back to about 2003-2004.  One of the original 
compromises private groups and labor unions were advocating for, with Congress 
looking at the Part D adoption, was to allow these plans to still have their own control 
over the formularies and their drug benefit design for their employees or their members, 
but still qualify for federal assistance outside of the Part D CMS structure.  As it evolved, 
there was the Part D route, which obviously was very popular, and we see a lot of the 
country move towards that, but then there’s also the private plans that grew up at the 
same time and continued to receive these subsidies.  I think we have a little more 
information on how this evolved since 2006 later in this presentation.  
 
Elyette Weinstein:  Thank you. That was very helpful. 
 
Dave Iseminger: Ryan, you did a great job.  Elyette, sometimes there are just grand 
bargains at the federal level.  
 
Sara Whitley: Slide 5 - Retiree Premium Calculation, is a walkthrough of how we get 
from a plan bid rate to a retiree premium.  It’s the total plan bid rate, which reflects the 
total cost of the plan and is bid by each carrier during our annual procurement process; 
then subtract the Medicare explicit subsidy, which can be considered the employer or 
state contribution to the retiree’s premium, and this amount is calculated as either $183 
or 50% of the total bid rate, whichever is less.  The result is the retiree premium.  
 
Slide 6 – State Medicare Explicit Subsidy – Illustration.  This slide provides illustrations 
for the calculation on Slide 5.   
 
Tanya Deuel: Slide 7 – Medicare Retiree Proposed 2022 Rates are the Medicare 
retiree proposed rates for plan year 2022.  We walk through this slide every year.  The 
left column are the plan names categorized by color for each of the carriers.  The first 
top column is the single subscriber premium, second column is the Medicare explicit 
subsidy that the state is contributing towards your premium, and the far-right column is 
the composite rate.  John, this is the rate you were looking for.  When we say composite 
rate, this is the rate that is bid by our carriers.  HCA goes through multiple rounds of 
negotiations with all of our carriers, as well as developing our own assumptions for our 
UMP Classic Medicare bid rates.  This far-right column is the total rate we’ve 
negotiated.  If you work backwards, the total rate less the Medicare explicit subsidy 
results in the single-subscriber premium.  Sara just walked through that dynamic.  
 
John Comerford: Sara, do you ever price these on the outside market?  In other 
words, as an individual, my buying Plan F, for instance, I paid personally less than this 
for Plan F.  Not with this carrier but with another carrier, and when I added on Part D, I 
still commit less than this overall.  That’s been my concern.  I’ve raised it with Dave in 



 

10 
 

the past that when I see these rates, they are much higher than are offered in the 
outside market.  I’m wondering if there’s a reason for that, or am I missing something?  
 
Tanya Deuel: So typically, on the non-Medicare portfolio, we do compare because we 
can measure things by actuarial value, and we can make sure we are comparing an 
apples-to-apples cost projection.  On the non-Medicare side, I don’t know that we have 
done that this most recent year, but it does come down to coverage levels, too.  The 
deductible makes a big difference, the maximum out-of-pocket, the pharmacy coverage. 
All those things make a difference in how the cost of the plan is derived.  We would 
have to find an apples-to-apples comparison in our plan design on the individual market. 
And I know our Medicare offerings are fairly rich.  Does that answer your question, 
John? 
 
John Comerford: Yes, it does. I’ll take it up with you guys later offline.  It’s just 
something that concerns me a little bit, that when I see premiums from private 
companies that are lower than this, and they seem to have the exact same benefits on 
the Medicare supplement side. 
 
Tanya Deuel: We’re definitely available to look into that.  We would need a little bit 
more information around the plan, the offering, the benefit design to be able to really do 
an apples-to-apples comparison.  
 
John Comerford: All right. Thank you. 
 
Dave Iseminger: We’ve done individual plan comparisons over time as this question 
has come up, so we’re more than happy to do a review of a specific plan to identify what 
the differences are or elucidate something new that we need to understand about our 
comparison to the individual market.  
 
Tom MacRobert: Another clarifying question.  If we look at Kaiser Washington 
Medicare Advantage Original Medicare, the composite rate on the right side.  The 
$346.39 is the bid rate they gave you or that you negotiated.  Is that correct?  
 
Tanya Deuel: Yes, the composite rate includes our $5 administration fee, so it’s the 
composite rate less $5 would be their bid rate.  
 
Tom MacRobert: Okay.  And then it’s either $183 or 50%.  In this case with Kaiser, it 
was $170.70 and that’s how you arrive at the $175.69. 
 
Tanya Deuel: Yes.  Unless their bid rate is, if you do the opposite $366, it’s less than 
$366.  They’re only going to get 50% of that bid rate towards the Medicare explicit 
subsidy.  
 
Dave Iseminger: Tanya, could you clarify is it 50% of the bid rate or 50% of the 
composite rate? 
 
Tanya Deuel: It’s 50% of the bid rate.   
 
Dave Iseminger: And not considering the administrative fee?  
 



 

11 
 

Tanya Deuel: Correct, 50% of the bid rate. 
 
Elyette Weinstein: This is to follow up on what John Comerford said.  I would like to 
know the results of that comparison, as well.  I’d appreciate being informed of it.  
 
Tanya Deuel: Elyette, we did a couple of years ago when we were looking through what 
to do with the overall portfolio and what sort of plan offering to add, where we derived 
on adding the Medicare Advantage Plus Part D plan.  We did do a thorough analysis of 
pricing and what exists on the market and what our members could pay.  We did that a 
couple years ago, but we can look again.  Like I said, there is going to be some sort of 
comparison. We’ll have to make some assumptions to make sure we’re finding like 
plans.  
 
Slide 8 – Medicare Retiree Proposed 2022 Premiums looks at comparing our single-
subscriber premiums from plan year 2021, the rates our members are currently paying, 
to what is proposed for calendar year 2022.  The same plan names down the left-hand 
side, followed by the single-subscriber premiums for 2021 and 2022 and the columns 
showing a change year over year as measured in a percentage and a dollar change.  
While we are seeing mostly negatives, there is an increase in our Uniform Medical Plan 
of about 9%, as well as a decrease of about 5% on our UnitedHealthcare, with 
everything else remaining fairly stable.  
 
We want to talk about the UMP Classic Medicare.  The entire crux of this presentation is 
to get a good understanding by the Board and our members of why that’s different, why 
is UMP having an increase, and what can we do about it versus, let’s say, our Medicare 
Advantage Plans and the way those plans are structured.  Like Sara described, we’re 
going to go into further detail, and she and Ryan will walk through some of the pricing 
and why the formularies are different, or how they behave, and why some of that federal 
revenue really has an impact.   
 
Sara Whitley: I want to level set where we’re going to take our presentation next.  We 
started this discussion with a review of the PEBB Medicare portfolio offering, then dug 
into how they’re both similar and different with respect to the underlying benefit 
structure, mechanisms for payment, and planned interaction with Original Medicare.  
We now want to switch gears and spend time walking through Slide 9 - The Medicare 
Pharmacy Landscape, and take a deeper dive into how our plan, specifically the United 
MA-PD Plans, are able to provide such a rich benefit design with lower premiums for 
our members when compared to our UMP Classic offering.  
 
Slide 10 – Part D Plans Are Insulated from Rising Drug Costs.  The main point we want 
to drive home today and throughout the next few slides is that Part D plans are 
insulated from rising drug costs, whereas the UMP Classic is not.  As the 
pharmaceutical industry has shifted to specialty drugs, the costs of those drugs continue 
to trend upward.  While pharmaceutical innovation targets often unmet medical needs, 
the FDA has allowed for accelerated review and approval of specialty drugs that offer 
enhanced therapy at 60.  These drugs provide enhanced innovative therapies, but 
they’re also set at a price point the market will bear.  We know from general utilization 
data in our UMP Classic Medicare plan that our Medicare members are the highest 
utilizers of specialty drugs in our PEBB UMP portfolio when compared to the non-
Medicare plans.  UMP absorbs the full impact of rising drug costs as the only care for 



 

12 
 

UMP Medicare pharmacy costs, whereas Part D plan, on the other hand, and as we’ll 
walk through in great detail in a moment, is insulated from those rising drug costs by 
supplementary sources of revenue to include, but not limited to, Part D reinsurance 
revenue provided by CMS to cover high-cost claimants, manufacturer drug discounts, 
which are provided by drug manufacturers when cumulative drug spend reaches a 
certain level, drug subsidies from CMS, and other sources of revenue.   
 
Ryan Pistoresi: This has always been around specialty drugs, especially since the late 
90s. What changed with the adoption of Medicare Part D is granting retirees in our 
country drug coverage and helping the federal government pay for these drug costs for 
our seniors.  Prior to this, drug companies were setting prices that the uninsured-- at 
that point, many retirees didn’t really have drug coverage—couldn’t afford and since 
then, we’ve seen steadily rising drug costs, especially with the advent of drugs targeting 
these populations.  We have a graph later to help illustrate what has happened within 
this market from 2006 onward.  
 
Sara Whitley: I want to note that what you’ll see might not initially make much sense. 
It’s a lot of information but stick with me as we walk through.  I think at the very end I’ll 
be able to paint the picture and complete the story that we’re trying to tell during today’s 
progression.  
 
Slide 11 – Standard Part D Plan Payer Structure.  This slide serves as a foundation for 
the next two slides.  It’s an illustration based on a Standard Part D plan, one that might 
be offered on the individual market and not a plan that is included in our current PEBB 
Medicare portfolio.  While the information doesn’t directly apply to our PEBB offerings, 
it’s important in providing the underlying foundation upon which we’ll build.  I’ll use this 
slide to walk through certain definitions, specific dollar amounts, and where these 
phases fall within the Part D world so that when we get to those types of specific 
illustrations, you’ll understand where we are in the graphic.  
 
Slide 11 is two-dimensional, moving horizontally and vertically across the graphic.  If we 
start in the lower left-hand corner and move from left to right horizontally, the relative 
width of the bar represents the portion of cost paid by that applicable payor.  We’ll 
illustrate this as a percent of total drug costs in the Deductible Phase of coverage.  A 
phase of coverage is listed vertically from top to bottom.  As we move vertically up the 
figure, accumulative drug costs will increase as the member continues to receive fills on 
their prescription.  For this illustration today and for all subsequent slides, we’re going to 
assume a member is utilizing a high-cost specialty drug, one that’s going to have them 
move through these phases very quickly as they fill prescriptions.  If we start at the 
bottom of this figure in the Deductible Phase, the member is responsible for 100% of the 
cost associated with their drugs up to the Part D plan deductible.  For a standard 
individual market Part D plan, the 2021 plan deductible was set at $445.  
 
After the member satisfies their deductible, we move into what’s referred to as the Initial 
Coverage Phase.  In this phase, the member continues to pay any associated cost-
share for their drugs, which is typically around 25% per plan on the individual market. 
The Part D plan represented by the darker turquoise color pays the remaining portion of 
drug cost.  The members in the Initial Coverage Phase pays their portion, whereas in  
the Part D plan it is the plan that pays their portion until cumulative drug costs reach 



 

13 
 

about $4,100.  Specifically, it’s $4,130 as defined by Part D, but we’ll refer to it as 
$4,100 for simplicity’s sake.  
 
After cumulative drug costs reach this level, they then move up into the next state of 
coverage.  Moving vertically on the graph, which is called the Coverage Gap Phase.  
Members are in the gap phase of coverage.  For Standard Part D plan, members 
continue to pay their associated cost-share of 25% for coverage in the Gap Phase, but 
rather than the Part D plan covering the remaining portion of costs that we saw on that 
Initial Coverage Phase, the plan now covers a smaller portion and drug manufacturer 
discounts kick in to help offset those costs.  This is the first stage that we see where 
Part D plans are insulated from those rising drug costs.  As cumulative costs increase, 
the member pays their portion, the plans pay their portion.  As we reach the Coverage 
Gap Phase, drug manufacturer discounts kick in and offsets those cumulative costs, 
reducing the amount the plans are responsible to pay in this phase.  
 
It’s worth noting that Standard Part D plans don’t typically provide coverage in the gap. 
This results in member out-of-pocket costs reaching considerably higher levels than 
what we would see in our PEBB Medicare portfolio.  I want to qualify that before we 
move onto the next illustration.  Coverage in the gap is something individual market 
plans do not typically offer.  
 
So, moving forward, as this hypothetical member’s cumulative drug costs increased 
above $10,048 specifically, again for simplicity’s sake, we’ll say $10,000, they enter 
what’s called the Catastrophic Coverage Phase as defined under Part D.  In this phase, 
members’ cost shares drop significantly down to around 5% and Medicare reinsurance 
revenue kicks in, which is represented by the dark green bar where we see Medicare 
pays and then the plan pays their portion of costs.  Medicare reinsurance payments are 
intended to cover approximately 80% of costs in the Catastrophic Coverage Phase.  
Again, we’re seeing as cumulative costs increase for a member receiving a high-cost 
specialty drug, the Part D plan is insulated from those increases in cost by these 
additional supplementary sources and revenue.  
 
Slide 11 laid our foundation based on a standard individual market Part D plan offering. 
I walked through what the coverage phases mean in a Part D phase.  Slide 12 – Part D 
Plan Payer Structure, will walk us through the same illustration, but it’s based on the 
customized employer Part D plan benefit design for members who select our UHC MA-
PD plan.  I want to note that the Part D plan structure is identical for both the PEBB 
Balance and PEBB Complete, so we’ll talk about it uniformly as the Part D benefit 
design for the UHC plan.  
 
We’ll begin in the lower left-hand corner and move from left to right horizontally with the 
bar representing the proportion of cost the applicable payor will pay in that coverage 
phase.  Again, for the purpose of this illustration, we’ll assume the member is utilizing a 
specialty drug.  Starting at the bottom of the figure, the Deductible Phase, the member 
is responsible for 100% of costs associated with their drugs, up to the plan deductible.  
The UHC plan deductibles are set at $100 for drugs in the specialty care.  Members 
would pay a $100 deductible and any associated cost-share for their drugs after the 
fact, which per drug in the Tier 4 for specialty care on our UHC Plan is a maximum of 
$100.  After the member satisfies their $100 deductible, we, again, move into the Initial 
Coverage Phase.  In this phase of coverage, the member continues to pay any 



 

14 
 

associated copay for the drugs they are filling, which is $100 again for a Tier 4 specialty 
drug, and UHC pays the remaining portion of drug cost.  The member is in the Initial 
Coverage Phase until their drug costs reach a cumulative of around $4,100 as we 
mentioned on the previous foundational slide when they then move into the Coverage 
Gap Phase.  
 
I want to pause before we move forward to qualify and make two important notes about 
this plan’s specific illustration with respect to the UHC Plan.  The first thing on the 
previous slide, Standard Part D plans, members enrolled in those plans continue to pay 
their associated cost-share, which is higher than what we see in our UHC MA-PD Plan 
and is around 25% of their total drug costs into the Coverage Gap Phase.  The UHC 
employer group plans are not standard plans.  They were customized for our members 
to provide coverage in the gap, which results in no member out-of-pocket cost above 
the plan maximum out-of-pocket of $2,000, which is why, for the purposes of this 
illustration, we have the member only paying in the Initial Coverage Phase, because I 
needed a way to illustrate a cap on member out-of-pocket costs while also illustrating 
that we have coverage in the gap for our members.  To say that in a different way, while 
the member out-of-pocket costs might not exceed $2,000, based on the richness of the 
plan benefit and how we structured the copays and maximum out-of-pocket for the UHC 
MA-PD Plan, it is possible their cumulative drug spend exceeds into the Coverage Gap 
Phase and the Catastrophic Coverage Phase before the member has reached their 
maximum out-of-pocket.  In these phases, the plan can realize these additional 
subsidies and additional revenue from drug manufacturer discounts and from CMS 
reinsurance revenues that offset the Part D plan costs.   
 
To speak to a more specific example, we know that a member reaches the Catastrophic 
Coverage Phase when cumulative drug spend reaches about $10,000.  For a high-cost 
specialty drug that costs around $5,000 for a 30-day supply, which is not uncommon for 
a specialty drug, the member would reach the Catastrophic Phase of coverage after the 
second fill of that prescription.  While the plan might be realizing the Medicare 
reinsurance revenue, the member is still paying their associated copay and has not 
reached their $2,000 plan maximum.  Again, that is a testament to the richness of the 
plan design we negotiated and customized for our members with the UHC MA-PD Plan 
and the additional revenue that is afforded to these Part D plans provided by CMS, 
which is why they’re able to offset those pharmacy costs and provide us lower 
premiums in the long run.  
 
Dave Iseminger: Sara, one more piece for the puzzle.  You may, as members of the 
public or the Board, be asking, “Why do the drug manufacturers have a piece they have 
to pay as a condition of CMS?”  As part of the CMS agreement, the drug manufacturers 
must do their part in the Coverage Gap Phase. That’s something that can’t be accessed 
in the self-insured UMP COB setting.  I want to drive home why drug manufacturers are 
paying a piece of the puzzle.  CMS requires it as a condition of their agreement. 
 
Ryan Pistoresi: Right.  That is a requirement.  The manufacturers, in order to 
participate in Part D, need to sign an agreement, and they must supply this discount 
when members hit this phase.  If they don’t and they don’t want to supply that discount, 
they’re not eligible to be covered by Part D.  You can imagine that virtually every drug 
covered by Part D has this manufacturer discount as a part of the plan.  
 



 

15 
 

Sara Whitley:  That’s an important piece to the story, as well.  So again, with this 
graphic, we see how the Part D plan, illustrated by the light turquoise color, is insulated 
from those drug costs as cumulative drug costs increase vertically across this graphic.  
 
Slide 13 - UMP Pharmacy Benefit Structure will piece the story together.  We see how 
UMP is not insulated from rising drug costs.  This illustration is based on the UMP 
Classic Medicare plan design.  And again, we’re assuming Medicare is using those 
high-cost specialty drugs.  Starting at the bottom of the figure, the Deductible Phase, the 
member is responsible for those costs.  After the member satisfies their deductible, we 
move into the Initial Coverage Phase, then onto the UHC Plan where the member pays 
their associated cost share, which is a maximum of $75 for a 30-day supply in our UMP 
Classic plan, and UMP picks up the remaining cost.  As we move vertically up the graph 
and those cumulative costs increase, UMP remains the only payor for the pharmacy 
benefit.  There is no offset to revenue.  The Plan picks up and absorbs the full cost of 
those drugs.  This is how we wanted to illustrate why you’re seeing the differences in 
premiums and why the Part D plan and the UHC plans can offer just as rich of a benefit 
to our Medicare retirees as UMP can, but at a much, much lower price point.   
 
Ryan Pistoresi: Slide 14 – Catastrophic Coverage and Part D is what I alluded to 
earlier in the presentation around what has been changing with the Medicare 
prescription drug coverage since Part D came into effect in 2006.  The far-left bar shows 
the distribution of how federal funds were paid for our seniors through the federal 
government, through CMS, through the different plans.  The orange is the reinsurance, 
and if you recall back to the slides that Sara was just presenting, that’s the very top bar 
where Medicare pays approximately 80% of the drug costs once someone reaches the 
Catastrophic Phase.  As the drug costs continue to accumulate in that phase, their 
percentage stays the same.   
 
The green is the direct subsidy, the darker blue is the premiums, and the lighter blue is 
the low-income subsidy.  If you think about members that have a low income, who may 
even qualify for Medicaid as dual eligibility for Medicare and Medicaid, you can see the 
retiree drug subsidy there at that 9%.  Through the years, and if you think about what 
has changed since 2006, such as the Affordable Care Act being passed in 2010 and 
some of the other changes in health care delivery and new technologies, you can see 
these proportions changed over time such that the orange bar, that reinsurance is now 
by far the greatest percentage.  In fact, is almost the entire cost through all the sources 
from 2006.  
 
When we look at 2009, as you can imagine, it’s continuing to grow to this day. You can 
see some of the other bars shrinking.  Of note, the low-income subsidy has remained 
relatively flat throughout, and the retiree drug subsidy has gone from about 9% in 2006 
to 1% in 2019.  If you recall back to the earlier question where the employer groups and 
the labor unions wanted to negotiate and to have these plans be available to them when 
Part D came into effect, that was about 9% of that.  As time has gone by, we’ve seen 
these members move from these plans into other options, and Part D reinsurance has 
taken the bulk of the federal costs.  
 
If you think about the incentives from the manufacturers like we touched on at the very 
beginning of this Medicare pharmaceutical landscape, they really are incentivized to set 
prices at what the market will bear.  And if you think about the diagram Sara was 



 

16 
 

presenting where the manufacturers are having that discount in the Coverage Gap 
Phase, those manufacturers are not getting any income on their drugs when they’re in 
that phase.  They only really get their income on the prior phases, which are set much, 
much lower, or in the Catastrophic Phase which is where Medicare pays 80%.  If you 
think about a drug manufacturer that may set a drug price at $5,000, like Sara’s 
example, and they stepped through it and hit it at their third fill, then they’re getting their 
revenue through that and it’s at 80%.  If you think about them setting a drug price at 
potentially $50,000, they’ll quickly step through that, and Medicare will still pay the same 
rate of 80%.  There really is an incentive for these manufacturers to continue to charge 
these higher prices and to collect their revenue through this reinsurance.  As you see 
what happens with that Medicare Part D Standard coverage, there really is an incentive 
for manufacturers to set that price.  If you think about how that price is reflective with 
UMP, you can see why UMP is taking the brunt of these drug price increases, especially 
around specialty drug costs.  
 
There’s another slide that helps illustrate what we’ve seen over the last few years 
around the rise in specialty drug costs as a component of our Medicare Pharmacy 
Spend that Sara will share. 
 
Sara Whitley: Slide 15 – UMP is Not Insulated from Rising Drug Costs.  To put a bow 
on the underlying story, we now understand why UMP absorbs the full impact of rising 
drug costs as the only payor for the UMP Classic pharmacy offering.  While we continue 
to take proactive and innovative approaches in efforts to maintain costs via the value 
formulary, which is decreasing the rate at which the pharmacy trends increase, the 
overall general trend for the Medicare pharmacy benefit will continue to rise over time. 
As these costs continue to rise, UMP members will realize any impact in an increasing 
UMP bid rate.  The next few slides will walk through additional illustrations of Medicare 
bid rate and premium development, and then we’ll pull together some specific drug next 
slide for our Medicare plan, as well, as we wrap up our discussion today.  
 
Slide 16 – Medicare Bid Rate Development has two sets of bar charts.  Hopefully, bar 
charts are a little less spatially confusing and provide an illustrative example of how a 
COB with Original Medicare bid rate is developed and translated into a retiree premium. 
This will be the two bars on the left-hand side.  There is a separate illustrative example 
to contrast with how a Medicare Advantage Part D rate might be developed.  The 
numbers you see were created for the purposes of this illustration.  
 
The far-left bar represents the total benefit rate for the COB plan, which encompasses 
both the medical and pharmacy total costs.  We know that CMS is the primary payor for 
medical claims, which is illustrated by the gray offset you see at the top of the bar.  The 
value of these primary claims from Original Medicare result in a reduction to the total 
medical costs that UMP is responsible for, which results in the total medical costs bar at 
the very bottom in the dark turquoise.  We then stack the total pharmacy costs on top of 
that, the lighter turquoise box, which comes to the total bid rate, and for the purposes of 
this illustration is $600.  We shift to the two brighter blue boxes.  As seen in previous 
illustrations and calculations, the Medicare explicit subsidy is then calculated, which in 
this case is $183.  That is the lesser value of 50% of the premium or $300 and $183, 
which results in a retiree premium of $417.  That’s the illustration for a Coordination of 
Benefits plan similar to what our UMP Classic bid rate, or how our UMP Classic bid rate 
is developed.  



 

17 
 

If we contrast that illustration with an MA-PD plan illustrative example, we can again 
start with the MA-PD total benefit rate, which is the left of the two bars on the right.  We 
know that plans receive CMS revenue to administer the medical portion of the benefit, 
and we see this represented again by the light gray bar at the top of the total benefit 
rate.  This offsetting revenue leaves the total medical cost illustrated at the bottom of 
this chart, and just like the COB plan, we then stack pharmacy costs on top of that 
medical cost.  But in this case, we note the total pharmacy costs are lesser than what 
we see in the COB plan.  This is because those total pharmacy costs are offset by Part 
D revenue, highlighted with the darker gray box with a green bar around it, that matches 
the total pharmacy costs bar.  The sum of these two bars, from these two boxes, 
represents the two true total pharmacy costs to the plan, gross of any additional 
revenue.  The standalone green box, less the Part D revenue, represents the total 
pharmacy costs used in development of the plan bid rate.  So, again, we’re illustrating 
how an MA-PD plan can offset total pharmacy costs with that additional revenue.  
Sliding to the brighter blue boxes on the right, under this illustration, the total bid rate for 
this MA-PD plan results in a $280 plan cost.  We calculate the Medicare explicit subsidy 
to be $140, 50% of that premium, provoking a Medicare retiree premium of $140.  
 
Slide 17 – Impact of Medicare Explicit Subsidy (UMP Classic Medicare).  This slide 
should be very familiar.  Tanya often presents this slide during our Medicare rate 
presentation.  It represents the impact of the Medicare explicit subsidy for the Uniform 
Medical Classic Medicare Plan.  The total bar represents the total plan bid rate, which 
we can see has increased year over year.  The blue portion of the bar is the Medicare 
explicit subsidy, which has remained with a cap of $183.  Because our members are 
realizing the full value of the Medicare explicit subsidy, any increase in bid rate year 
over year is fully absorbed in member premiums, which is represented by the light gray 
bar.  
 
Slide 18 – UMP Classic Bid Rate.  Again, as we move forward in the deck and dig a 
little bit deeper, we can see the UMP Classic bid rate has increased over time on our 
previous slide, and this slide represents the UMP Classic bid rate of the proportion of 
total medical versus percent pharmacy.  We can attribute a lesser portion of our total bid 
rate to medical costs and a greater portion, around 60%, to pharmacy costs.  
 
Ryan Pistoresi: Slide 19 – UMP Classic Medicare Drug Mix (Utilization).  These next 
two slides will look at how the cost and utilization of UMP Classic Medicare has evolved 
over the last six years.  Slide 19 looks at the utilization.  The measure we have taken to 
present this to you is on base supply, which is a standardized measure of how a person 
may use a drug.  This is standardized between drugs that you would take once a day, 
twice a day, taken once a week.  It’s measured in how many days a person is using a 
drug, and it’s a very good measure that considers all the different types of drugs being 
used until you can see the pattern of utilization has been relatively similar over these 
years, which is primarily driven by generic drugs.  These are the drugs that you know as 
the cheapest ones used to treat a lot of the most chronic medical conditions like 
hypertension, high blood pressure, hyperlipidemia, high cholesterol, depression.  
There’s quite a lot of drugs.   
 
The bluer bars are the brand, specifically to what we call traditional brand.  These are 
drugs specific to conditions like diabetes, even hypertension or hypercholesterolemia, 
asthma, COPD, just the traditional drug classes.  The specialty ones in the yellow are 



 

18 
 

for the newer biologic drugs that have high costs, special handling, are used to treat 
complex medical conditions, but there’s a small population and often an unmet medical 
need by the traditional drugs.  Relative to the other drug classes, it’s a small day supply 
in the grand scheme of things.  The relative percentage share is increasing steadily as 
more drugs come to market as more patients develop these conditions in which these 
drugs treat, and in which there is more competition within this space.  
 
Slide 20 – UMP Classic Medicare Drug Mix (Plan Paid).  This slide is the actual costs 
associated with these drugs.  The colors are the same and in the same placement.  This 
slide illustrates where these drivers are in costs.  Generics, which accounted for 
approximately 90% of all base supply utilization for these six years, is less than 25% in 
2015 and has continued to decrease.  The way this slide is being presented in how the 
plan is paid is that they’re not necessarily decreasing at the rate you see.  It’s just the 
component of our generic spend is decreasing relative to brand and specialty.  If you 
think about it in terms of the different bid rates that you saw on Sara’s slide earlier, this 
is slowly decreasing.  We are saving some money on generics, but it’s not decreasing at 
the rate you see.  I just want to make sure you understand what this slide is 
representing, which is a component of total drug spend and not the histogram on Sara’s 
slide where it showed the absolute dollar spend increasing over time.  
 
The brand here is slowly decreasing as a percentage of the UMP Classic Medicare 
spend.  It’s pretty flat.  It’s slightly risen in this time.  The specialty is continuing to grow 
at a steady and strong rate over this time, and it’s continuing to increase on an absolute 
dollar value for UMP Classic Medicare through these years.  This is to show you this 
specialty drug cost, even though it’s a very small component of our utilization, is one of 
the main drivers of the drug costs that influenced the UMP Medicare rate.  If you think 
about the value formulary that Sara alluded to earlier, it was one of the strategies we 
implemented in 2020 that helped us shift from the higher cost drugs to the lower cost 
drugs within these different tiers.  But, as you can see, over time that specialty drug 
percentage is continuing to increase and outpace the savings realized through that 
change.  That’s not to note we are doing other management strategies like using prior 
authorization to focus in on the preferred drugs, or other utilization management 
strategies throughout these different classes.  It’s continuing to rise despite these 
different tools we use as a plan and wanting to reiterate the message conveyed earlier 
where the federal government and CMS’s subsidies are really helping offset the MA-PD 
plans or the Part D plans relative to what we see in UMP Classic Medicare.  
 
Dave Iseminger: Ryan, I have one thing for you to clarify.  When the value formulary 
was put in place on this last slide, what part of the drug mix was the value formulary 
influencing? 
 
Ryan Pistoresi: The value formulary impacted all three phases, but the most significant 
impact we saw was within that light blue brand phase because members who were 
using brand name medications had not previously used the preferred ones that are the 
lowest cost to the member and to the plan.  That shift we talked about at the May PEBB 
meeting was taking the light blue utilization and shifting it within the light blue.  We did 
see an absolute dollar decrease between them.  In this representation here, it isn’t really 
being reflected given that we’re looking at what specialty is doing in 2020.  We tried to 
describe that in detail at the May PEBB meeting.  
 



 

19 
 

Tanya Deuel:  Slide 21 – Proposed Resolutions.  We are going to walk through our 
proposed resolutions.  Slide 22 – Proposed Resolution PEBB 2021-17 2022 Medicare 
Explicit Subsidy.  We’re asking the PEB Board to adopt the calendar year 2022 
Medicare explicit subsidy of $183 or 50% of the premium, whichever is less.  This is 
before the Board because the Legislature sets the cap at $183; however, the Board 
could choose to adopt a lesser explicit subsidy.  The resolution has been drafted at the 
full $183, making the assumption the Board would want to choose the full $183.  
 
Slides 23 through 27 are proposed resolutions by carrier.  When there are multiple plan 
offerings under one carrier, by the Board adopting the carrier resolution, they are 
adopting each of the premiums within that carrier as well as any underlying plan design. 
For example, a KP Northwest plan design change for our Medicare portfolio, by the 
Board adopting the Kaiser Northwest Medicare resolution, the Board would essentially 
be adopting the premiums and those underlying benefit design changes.  
 
First is Proposed Resolution PEBB 2021-18 KPNW Medicare Premiums, followed by 
2021-19, Kaiser Washington Medicare Premiums, followed by 2021-20 UMP Medicare 
Premiums, followed by the 2021-21 UnitedHealthcare Medicare Premiums, and last 
would be 2021-22, Premera Medicare Supplement Premiums.  
 
Slide 28 – Next Steps.  These resolutions will be brought back to the Board for action 
later this month.   
 
Elyette Weinstein:  Thank you for referring to that Kaiser Foundation article in your 
materials.  I see on page six it refers to the federal government’s efforts to reduce 
program costs associated with expensive specialty drugs.  Honestly, this article is from 
2018.  I’m curious.  Is anyone familiar with any new efforts to reduce the cost of these 
specialty drugs?  And my second question.  In 2019 I think it was House Bill 1224 that 
passed dealing with drug transparencies.  One of you referred to the Health Care Cost 
Transparency Board, which is also referred to on your website.  I was wondering if that 
has any relation to this problem and is going to help address it?  Thank you.  
 
Ryan Pistoresi: I believe when that article was published, Trump had released a paper 
that detailed four different ways they were going to explore trying to offset drug costs. 
The ideas were looking at drug importation, reference pricing to international prices, so 
looking at what other countries were paying for drugs, and then setting the prices like 
that.  There were a few different ideas at that time.  I should be up to date on what the 
Biden administration is looking at in terms of their efforts.  I know that Medicare 
negotiating drug prices has been a popular topic in the last few months.  I know that has 
some broad bipartisan appeal, at least in the public, but I don’t necessarily know what 
that would look like given CMS doesn’t have experience in trying to negotiate drug 
prices, and whether it would look like a European approach like in the UK where they 
will not cover drugs unless they meet a specific price per quality threshold, or if it’ll be 
like an American payor model in which they will be negotiating rebates and then using 
that rebate to either be applied at the point of sale to the member buying the drug or 
apply to what Medicare is paying in reinsurance.    
 
Your second question was about the Health Care Authority’s Drug Price Transparency 
Program, which was a result of House Bill 1224 in 2019.  That program is operating.  
We are looking to publish our first annual report at the end of this year.  We do have a 



 

20 
 

status report on our website detailing the work we are doing in setting up this program, 
and this will be the first year we are receiving data from the carrier’s PBMs, PSAOs, and 
drug manufacturers.  More to come on that.  It is separate from the Health Care Cost 
Transparency Board, which is being set up at our agency, as well.  I don’t have as much 
insight into that since I am not directly involved in it like I am with the Drug Price 
Transparency Program.  I do know they, unfortunately, will not be able to use the 
information we collect from the Drug Price Transparency Program given that there is a 
requirement in statute that forbids us from disclosing that data, even within the agency, 
besides what we can publish in the public report.  It is firewalled off from the other parts 
of our agency and is not able to be used by the Health Care Cost Transparency Board.  
 
Tom MacRobert: I want to make sure I have this clear.  I had written out when I was 
listening to the presentation why do UnitedHealthcare and Kaiser Permanente qualify 
for manufacturer drug discounts, and we don’t?  I think what you said, Ryan, is because 
if they want to participate at the federal level, they actually have to sign an agreement 
that ensures they will comply with the standards set by the feds and at a state level.  We 
simply do not get a Part D reinsurance.  Is that correct?  
 
Ryan Pistoresi: The way I would describe it is that UMP Classic is a Medicare 
Coordination of Benefits (COB) plan without a CMS contract and is self-funded, 
whereas the United MA-PD plans are contracted with CMS and must follow all the rules 
required of CMS for Part D coverage.  If so, then they can access those CMS funds.  
Those are the two kinds of differences I would describe between UMP Classic 
Medicare, which does not get those CMS funds versus the MA-PD options that we are 
now offering, which do get those CMS funds.   
 
Tanya Deuel: I think that was good, Ryan.  
 
John Comerford:  Not being a state employee and being on the Board for two years 
now, I have lots of questions.  This one involves going back to Medicare.  If the 
employee were to pick a Plan F or a Plan G, do they have to take the Part D with the 
state, or could they go out and privately shop the Part D? 
 
Tanya Deuel: We do not offer a standalone Part D plan, John.  
 
John Comerford:  So, if they opt for the F or the G, they are on their own for getting a 
Part D?  There’s nothing the state can offer for creditable coverage. 
 
Sara Whitley: No.  That’s correct.  We don’t offer a standalone Part D plan.  If a 
member’s enrolled in a Premera Plan F or G and they’re looking for drug coverage, they 
would need to go to the individual market and enroll in just that individual Part D plan 
because we don’t have a standalone pharmacy Part D benefit or plan offered within our 
portfolio.  
 
John Comerford:  And you don’t offer any subsidies to them for doing that?  
 
Sara Whitley: We do not. 
 
Dave Iseminger: Chair Birch has asked me to wrap up our meeting.  I want to thank 
everybody for the presentations related to the Medicare rates.  We will continue that 



 

21 
 

discussion with a scheduled action on those Medicare resolutions at the next Board 
meeting.  
 
Public Comment 
 
Fred Yancey: A quick question.  The biggest obstacle, and you guys have presented it, 
that our retirees have is the high cost of prescription meds.  Surprise, surprise, and it’s a 
catch 22 for them.  Many of them can’t afford the high cost of Uniform and yet that 
precludes them from getting a good deal on prescription drugs.  So interesting question 
that John asked.  Could the Health Care Authority offer a Part D plan?  Have you ever 
looked at that?  And is there any interest in looking at offering that as a standalone 
plan?  That’s all I had.  
 
Dave Iseminger: Thank you, Fred.  I will say there were a lot of options evaluated in 
what culminated in the MA-PD proposal, but it is a constant evaluation process.  I will 
just say there were a lot of options on the table when this ultimately led to MA-PD, and 
we’ll continue evaluating different options because of the structural differences 
described today between the various parts of the Medicare portfolio.  It is an ongoing 
interesting question.  Thank you for that comment.  
 
Fred Yancey: Maybe it’s just me and it’s maybe out of place, but it would sure be nicer 
to either have the Exec Session scheduled at the start of the meeting or at the end of 
the meeting but not midway.  You had a couple of important things and then you 
recessed and then came back.  It’s a weird arrangement.  
 
Dave Iseminger: I can say that part of the challenge, Fred, is that under the Open 
Public Meeting Act, it’s awkward either way.  We must come back to public session to 
adjourn or come into public session to open.  There’s an awkward piece no matter how 
we do it, but we can always evaluate because it kind of relates to the start and end 
times of the various meetings, but I do recognize it’s a challenge.  We’ll take that under 
advisement.  
 
Fred Yancey: Again, if you did the meeting overview and then recessed, then came 
back and followed the rest of the tabs, that would have been better for me.  And maybe 
I’m just being selfish.   
 
Dave Iseminger: Well, we do our best to stick to the agenda.   
 
Elyette Weinstein: This is really a response to be fair to the staff.  As a Board member, 
it made perfect sense the way they proceeded.  You would have been here three more 
hours because of me if they had not gone in the order they went, and I can’t speak for 
the other Board members, but I have to tell you, because of them I understood what 
was going on.  
 
Dave Iseminger: I appreciate that Elyette, as far as what we can’t talk about what was 
in the Executive Session, the very nature of it.  But I appreciate you providing that 
insight from the Board member standpoint, having attended the entirety of the meetings 
that the progression worked from your perspective.  
 
 



 

22 
 

Next Meeting 
June 30, 2021 
12:00 p.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
 
Preview of June 30, 2021 PEB Board Meeting 
Dave Iseminger, Director, Employees and Retirees Benefits Division, provided an 
overview of potential agenda topics for the June 30, 2021 Board Meeting. 
 
   
Meeting adjourned at 4:00 p.m. 
 



 

 

TAB 4 



2023 Annual Procurement 
Update

Beth Heston, PEB Procurement Manager
Employees and Retirees Benefits Division
June 9, 2022



Annual Renewal Timelines
• Request for Renewal Released

– February 25, 2022

• Responses and Bid Rate Forms Received from 
Carriers 

– April 8, 2022 and April 29, 2022

• Board Presentation of Negotiation Results

– June and July Board Meetings

• Final Board Vote on Non-Medicare Premium 
Resolutions

– July 2022
2



Kaiser Foundation Health Plan 
of the Northwest (KPNW) 

Proposed Changes

3



Kaiser Northwest Proposed Changes

• Consumer Driven Health Plan (CDHP)

– Increase Deductible to $1,500/$3,000

• Classic

– Increase Maximum Out of Pocket from 
$2,000 to $2,500/$4,000 to $5,000

• Senior Advantage Medicare

– No changes

4



Out-of-Pocket Maximum in Portfolio

Kaiser 
Northwest

Kaiser Washington Uniform Medical Plan

Single Subscriber

Classic Classic SoundChoice Value Classic Plus Select

$2,500 $2,000 $2,000 $3,000 $2,000 $2,000 $3,500

All Other Tiers

$5,000 $4,000 $4,000 $6,000 $4,000 $4,000 $7,000

5

Italics/Underline indicates a change from 2022



Kaiser Northwest Book of Business 
(BoB) Changes

• Advanced Care at Home (ACAH)

– When clinically appropriate, the option to be 
treated and recuperate at home

• Naturopathic services update

– Dependents who live outside of plan service area 
now covered

• Comply with WA SB 5546 Insulin Affordability

– Adjust the cap on insulin/month to $35
6



Kaiser Foundation Health Plans 
Accumulators

Beginning in Plan Year 2023, subscribers who 
move between PEBB and SEBB Programs will 
keep their accumulated deductible and 
maximum out-of-pocket totals when they join 
the same carrier’s plan in the opposite 
program.

7



Kaiser Foundation Health 
Plan of Washington (KPWA)

Proposed Changes

8



Kaiser Washington Proposed Changes

• CDHP

– Increase deductible to $1,500/$3,000

• Classic, SoundChoice, Value

–No changes

• Original Medicare and Medicare 
Advantage

–No Changes

9



Kaiser Washington BoB Changes

• Advanced Care at Home (ACAH)

–When clinically appropriate, the option to 
be treated and recuperate at home

• Well Care Service Codes

–Covering codes as preventive that aren’t 
required

–Codes will have cost shares going forward

10



Kaiser Washington BoB Changes (cont.)

• Comply with WA SB 5546 Insulin 
Affordability

–Adjust the cap on insulin/month to $35

11



Other PEBB Program Benefits

12



• DeltaCare

–Pediatric care for children through age 
19 will be covered at 100%, less 
applicable copays

–Coverage for composite fillings on 
posterior (rear) teeth 

–Providers will be paid a $25 Preventive 
Care Incentive

13

Dental Plans



• Uniform Dental Plan (UDP)

–No changes 

• Willamette Dental Plan
–No changes

14

Dental Plans (cont.)



• MetLife Life Insurance

–No changes

• The Standard Long-Term Disability

–No changes

15

Other Benefits



Questions?

Beth Heston, PEB Procurement Manager

Employees and Retirees Benefits Division

Beth.Heston@hca.wa.gov

16

mailto:Beth.Heston@hca.wa.gov


 

 

TAB 5 



Uniform Medical Plan (UMP)
RFR 2022 

Benefit Year 2023

Christine Davis, UMP Account Manager 
Portfolio Management & Monitoring Section
Employees and Retirees Benefits Division
June 9, 2022



App-based Behavioral Health Program

• HCA is requesting information on available 
app-based behavioral health program options 
for PEBB and SEBB Program members

• Regence to provide program detail offerings 
for app-based behavioral health programs 
that could be offered to PEBB and SEBB 
Program UMP members for a January 1, 
2023, implementation

2



Costco Mail Order Pharmacy

• Adding Costco as additional mail order 
pharmacy beginning in 2023

• Member experience will be similar to
current offerings

3



HSA Qualified Consumer Directed 
Health Plan

IRS minimum deductible was derived April 29, 
2022 from Revenue Procedure 2022-24

4

2022 2023

Single 
Subscriber

$1,400 $1,500

All Other 
Tiers

$2,800 $3,000



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-05
IRS Minimum Deductible for 

Consumer Directed Health Plan

Beginning January 1, 2023, the 
deductible in the UMP Consumer 
Directed Health Plan (CDHP) will be 
increased to $1,500 for single 
subscribers and $3,000 for all other tiers. 

5



IRS Notice 2019-45

• Internal Revenue Service Notice 2019-45 expands 
the list of preventive care benefits the Uniform 
Medical Plan Consumer Directed Health Plan can 
cover before a member meets their deductible. 
Although these services and items are classified as 
preventive care for purposes of section 223(c)(2)(C), 
these services and items can still be subject to cost 
sharing (coinsurance, copayment, etc.).

• Board voted on medical components of the notice 
last year (PEBB 2021-23) included in the Appendix.

6



Pharmacy Aspects of IRS Notice 2019-45 

7



IRS Notice 2019-45

HCA recommends the UMP Consumer 
Directed Health Plan provide pre-deductible 
coverage (15% cost share) for certain high 
value drugs within each drug class specified 
in IRS notice 2019-45.

8



Preventive Care 
for Specified 
Conditions 
(Pharmacy) 

For Individuals 
Diagnosed With 

Drugs UMP CDHP/HDHP Will 
Cover Before Deductible in 

2023 (15% Cost Share)

Angiotensin 
Converting 

Enzyme (ACE) 
Inhibitors

Heart failure, 
diabetes, and/or 
coronary artery 

disease

Enalapril/hydrochlorothiazide, 
enalapril, lisinopril, 

lisinopril/hydrochlorothiazide 

Anti-resorptive 
Therapy

Osteoporosis or 
osteopenia 

Alendronate

Beta-blockers
Heart failure, 

coronary artery 
disease

Atenolol, 
bisoprolol/hydrochlorothiazide, 
carvedilol, metoprolol succinate, 

metoprolol tartrate

9



Preventive Care 
for Specified 
Conditions 
(Pharmacy) 

For 
Individuals 
Diagnosed 

With 

Drugs UMP CDHP/HDHP Will 
Cover Before Deductible in 2023 

(15% Cost Share)

Inhaled 
Corticosteroids

Asthma
Budesonide suspension, Flovent 

Diskus, Flovent HFA

Insulin and 
Other Glucose 

Lowering Agents

Diabetes

Insulin: all insulin 

Non-insulin: Glimepiride, glipizide, 

glyburide, glyburide/metformin, 

metformin

10



Preventive Care 
for Specified 
Conditions 
(Pharmacy) 

For 
Individuals 
Diagnosed 

With 

Drugs UMP CDHP/HDHP Will 
Cover Before Deductible in 2023 

(15% Cost Share)

Selective 
Serotonin 
Reuptake 

Inhibitors (SSRIs)

Depression
Citalopram, escitalopram, fluoxetine, 

sertraline 

Statins
Heart disease, 

diabetes

Deductible is already waived and 
covered as Preventive for members 

aged 40 and above

11



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-06
UMP CDHP Pharmacy Preventive Care 

Beginning January 1, 2023, the UMP Consumer 
Directed Health Plan (CDHP) will cover the drug 
list presented to the Board on June 9, 2022, prior 
to meeting the plan deductible.  Thereafter, HCA 
may alter this drug list to allow for pre-
deductible coverage based on clinical evaluation 
and in accordance with IRS guidance.

12



Questions?

Christine Davis, UMP Account Manager

Portfolio Management & Monitoring Section

Christine.Davis@hca.wa.gov

13

mailto:Christine.Davis@hca.wa.gov


Appendix

14



Resolution PEBB 2021-23

15



IRS Allowed Changes to UMP Consumer 
Directed Health Plan

16



IRS Allowed Changes to UMP Consumer 
Directed Health Plan (cont.)

17



 

 

TAB 6 



2023 PEBB Medicare Rates & 
Proposed Resolutions

Sara Whitley Molly Christie 
ERB Finance Unit Manager Fiscal Information & Data Analyst
Financial Services Division Financial Services Division
June 9, 2022



Enrollment Summary

2

Plan Total
Percentage of 

Total

Kaiser Permanente NW Senior Advantage 2,442       2.3%

Kaiser WA Medicare Advantage & Original Medicare 23,758     22.7%

Uniform Medical Plan Classic Medicare 53,576     51.2%

UnitedHealthcare PEBB Complete 4,426       4.2%

UnitedHealthcare PEBB Balance 183           0.2%

Premera Blue Cross Medicare Supplement F 15,072     14.4%

Premera Blue Cross Medicare Supplement G 5,096       4.9%

Grand Total 104,553   

Enrollment as of February 2022



Kaiser NW Senior Advantage $176.13 $171.19 $347.32

Kaiser WA Medicare Advantage & Original Medicare $174.59 $169.65 $344.24

UMP Classic Medicare $438.34 $183.00 $621.34

UnitedHealthcare (MA-PD) PEBB Complete $145.63 $140.70 $286.33

UnitedHealthcare (MA-PD) PEBB Balance $122.94 $118.01 $240.95

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan F Retired $115.16 $110.23 $225.39

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan F Disabled $196.69 $183.00 $379.69

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan G Retired $98.53 $93.60 $192.13

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan G Disabled $164.05 $159.11 $323.16

*Premium after Medicare Explicit Subsidy, proposed at $183 or 50% of the premium, whichever is less for the 2023 plan year. 

**Administrative fees fell from $5.00 in 2022 to $4.94 in 2023 

Monthly Single 

Subscriber Premium*

Medicare Explicit 

Subsidy
Composite Rate

Medicare Retiree Rates

3



Medicare Retiree Premiums

4

2022
Final

2023
Proposed

% $

Kaiser NW Senior Advantage $172.79 $176.13 2% $3

Kaiser WA Medicare Advantage & Original Medicare $175.69 $174.59 -1% ($1)

UMP Classic Medicare $364.87 $438.34 20% $73

UnitedHealthcare (MA-PD) PEBB Complete $148.68 $145.63 -2% ($3)

UnitedHealthcare (MA-PD) PEBB Balance $125.99 $122.94 -2% ($3)

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan F Retired $116.11 $115.16 -1% ($1)

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan F Disabled $199.77 $196.69 -2% ($3)

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan G Retired $99.35 $98.53 -1% ($1)

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan G Disabled $165.39 $164.05 -1% ($1)

*Premium after Medicare Explicit Subsidy, proposed at $183 or 50% of the premium, whichever is less for the 2023 plan year. 

**Administrative fees fell from $5.00 in 2022 to $4.94 in 2023 

Single Subscriber Premium*
Change in Subscriber 

Premium**



2023 Annualized Premium Costs 

5

Kaiser NW Senior Advantage $2,113.56

Kaiser WA Medicare Advantage & Original Medicare $2,095.08

UMP Classic Medicare $5,260.08

UnitedHealthcare (MA-PD) PEBB Complete $1,747.56

UnitedHealthcare (MA-PD) PEBB Balance $1,475.28

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan F Retired $1,381.92

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan F Disabled $2,360.28

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan G Retired $1,182.36

Premera Medicare Supplement Plan G Disabled $1,968.60

*Premium after Medicare Explicit Subsidy, proposed at $183 or 50% of the premium, whichever is less for the 2023 plan year. 

**Administrative fees fell from $5.00 in 2022 to $4.94 in 2023 

Annual Single 

Subscriber Premium



Medicare Bid Rates Over Time

6

 $-

 $100

 $200

 $300

 $400

 $500

 $600

 $700

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023

Medicare Bid Rates

UMP Medicare Kaiser WA Kaiser NW UHC Complete UHC Balance



7

Medicare Subsidy & Premiums Over Time

Premiums do not include the ~$5.00 administrative fee. 



8

Medical
(40%)

Unpredicted 
increase in 
utilization

New large 
claims

Medicare 
FFS trend

Pharmacy
(60%)

Specialty 
drug 

utilization

2023 Increase to UMP Classic Medicare Premium

Primary 
payment on 
pharmacy 

Double digit 
increases in 

trend



Total Pharmacy Cost
$400

Total Pharmacy Cost
$120

Part D Revenue
-$150

Total Medical Cost
$250

Total Medical Cost
$80

Part C Revenue
-$650

Medicare Primary
Claims Payments

-$700

Medicare Retiree Premium
$467

Medicare Retiree Premium
$100

Medicare Explicit Subsidy
$183

Medicare Explicit Subsidy
$100

UMP Classic Total Benefit Rate UMP Classic Bid Rate MA-PD Total Benefit Rate MA-PD Bid Rate

$0

$200

$400

$600

$800

$1,000

$1,200

$1,400

9

Total Bid Rate = $650

Total Bid Rate = $200

Total Plan Cost = $1,350

Total Plan Cost = $1,000

- UMP Primary Claims Payments is an estimated amount based on claims data
- All figures are for illustrative purposes only

Medicare Bid Rate Development Illustration



Proposed Fully-Insured 
Medicare Resolutions

10



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-07
Medicare Premium – Explicit Subsidy

The PEB Board endorses the calendar 
year 2023 monthly Medicare Explicit 
Subsidy of $183 or 50% of premium, 
whichever is less. 

11



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-08
Medicare Premium - KPNW

The PEB Board endorses the Kaiser 
Foundation Health Plan of the 
Northwest Medicare plan premium. 

12



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-09
Medicare Premium - KPWA

The PEB Board endorses the Kaiser 
Foundation Health Plan of Washington 
Medicare plan premiums. 

13



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-10
Medicare Premium – UHC MA-PD

The PEB Board endorses the 
UnitedHealthcare Medicare Advantage 
plus Prescription Drug (MA-PD) plan 
premiums.

14



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-11
Medicare Premium - Premera

The PEB Board endorses the Premera
Medicare Supplement plan premiums.

15



Proposed UMP 
Medicare Resolution

16



Preview of UMP Classic 
Medicare Recommendation

• Approve the rates for plan year 2023

• Simultaneously, announce complete 
closure of the plan at the end of plan 
year 2023

17



Recent Five-Year Strategic Journey

• The increase in Summer 2017 for 2018 was the warning sign

• 2018 and 2019, actuarial funding and budget proviso to evaluate 
options to stabilize the offerings in the Medicare portfolio

• Ultimately, procuring and offering a Medicare Advantage plus 
Prescription Drug (MA-PD) plan(s) was identified as the best option

• MA-PD plans were secured and introduced in plan year 2021

– Benefit design of UHC Complete is based on UMP Classic’s 
benefit coverages

This overall strategy was pursued to proactively respond and ensure 
that high-quality, comprehensive benefits would remain available to 
retirees.

18



Challenges to Maintaining a 
Self-Insured COB Plan

• The UMP Classic available to Medicare Part A & B enrollees has been 
well managed
– WA is one of the only states that has been able to maintain a self-insured COB 

plan among its offerings 

– Steps have been taken to try to mitigate premium increases without reducing 
benefits 

• But a well-managed self-insured COB plan simply cannot overcome 
the advantage provided to Part C & D plans by CMS subsidies

• The premium cost of UMP Classic is already increasing significantly 
and the value of it to our Medicare members is limited

19



Reasons for Closure Recommendation
• UMP Classic cannot compete with other Medicare risk pool offerings

– CMS does not provide the same subsidies to COB plan offerings that are 
provided to Part C & D plans 

• UMP Classic will continue to have rate increases that outpace the 
other plan offerings 

• With similar coverage and benefits available in other PEBB retiree 
plan options, UMP Classic provides limited value to our Medicare 
members
– Annual 2023 UMP Classic Medicare premium per enrollee is ~$5,260 (3x the 

most comparable plan) 

– Paying significantly more premium does not significantly provide benefit to the 
member

20



Retiree Impacts

• Many people will need to change plans, but will see significantly more 
money in pockets from lower monthly premiums 
– There are plan choices and HCA will work on as smooth a transition as possible

• More sustained ability to use pension deduct payment process

• Most plan options have additional benefit coverage not available in 
UMP (e.g., gym membership and an enhanced vision hardware 
allowance)  

• The nationwide UnitedHealthcare (UHC) options also include 
– A wider pharmacy network than UMP

– Access to any provider who accepts Medicare 

– Services not covered by Medicare have the same cost share for in-network and 
out-of-network providers 

21



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-12
Uniform Medical Plan Classic Medicare 

Premium and Plan Closure

The PEB Board endorses the Uniform Medical Plan 
(UMP) Classic Medicare premium for plan year 2023.  
Effective January 1, 2024, UMP Classic is closed to 
enrollment for all current and future retirees, survivors, 
or their dependents who are enrolled in both Parts A 
and B of Medicare and who are included in the PEBB 
Medicare risk pool as described in RCW 41.05.080(3). 

22



Questions?

Sara Whitley
ERB Finance Unit Manager
Financial Services Division
Sara.Whitley@hca.wa.gov

Molly Christie
Fiscal Information and Data Analyst

Financial Services Division
Molly.Christie@hca.wa.gov

23

mailto:Sara.Whitley@hca.wa.gov
mailto:Molly.Christie@hca.wa.gov


 

 

TAB 7 



Policy and Rules Development

Stella Ng, Policy and Rules Coordinator
Policy, Rules, and Compliance Section 
Employees and Retirees Benefits Division
June 9, 2022



RCW 41.05.065 (1) and (2)

(1) The public employees' benefits board shall study all matters connected with the provision 
of health care coverage, life insurance, liability insurance, accidental death and 
dismemberment insurance, and disability income insurance or any of, or a combination of, 
the enumerated types of insurance for employees and their dependents on the best basis 
possible with relation both to the welfare of the employees and to the state. However, 
liability insurance shall not be made available to dependents.

(2) The public employees' benefits board shall develop employee benefit plans that include 
comprehensive health care benefits for employees. In developing these plans, the public 
employees' benefits board shall consider the following elements:

(a) Methods of maximizing cost containment while ensuring access to quality health care;

(b) Development of provider arrangements that encourage cost containment and ensure 
access to quality care, including but not limited to prepaid delivery systems and 
prospective payment methods;

(c) Wellness incentives that focus on proven strategies, such as smoking cessation, injury 
and accident prevention, reduction of alcohol misuse, appropriate weight reduction, 
exercise, automobile and motorcycle safety, blood cholesterol reduction, and nutrition 
education;…

2



RCW 41.05.065(4)

(4) Except if bargained for under chapter 41.80 RCW, the public employees' benefits 
board shall design benefits and determine the terms and conditions of employee and 
retired or disabled school employee participation and coverage, including establishment 
of eligibility criteria subject to the requirements of this chapter. Employer groups 
obtaining benefits through contractual agreement with the authority for employees 
defined in RCW 41.05.011(6)(a) (i) through (vi) may contractually agree with the 
authority to benefits eligibility criteria which differs from that determined by the public 
employees' benefits board. The eligibility criteria established by the public employees' 
benefits board shall be no more restrictive than the following:…

3

http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=41.80
http://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=41.05.011


RCW 41.05.080 (1) and (3)
(1) Under the qualifications, terms, conditions, and benefits set by the public 
employees' benefits board:

(a) Retired or disabled state employees, retired or disabled school employees, retired 
or disabled employees of county, municipal, or other political subdivisions, or retired 
or disabled employees of tribal governments covered by this chapter may continue 
their participation in insurance plans and contracts after retirement or disablement;

(b) Separated employees may continue their participation in insurance plans and 
contracts if participation is selected immediately upon separation from employment;

(c) Surviving spouses, surviving state registered domestic partners, and dependent 
children of emergency service personnel killed in the line of duty may participate in 
insurance plans and contracts.

(3) Rates charged to surviving spouses and surviving state registered domestic 
partners of emergency service personnel killed in the line of duty, retired or disabled 
employees, separated employees, spouses, or children who are eligible for parts A 
and B of medicare shall be calculated from a separate experience risk pool comprised 
only of individuals eligible for parts A and B of medicare; however, the premiums 
charged to medicare-eligible retirees and disabled employees shall be reduced by the 
amount of the subsidy provided under RCW 41.05.085.

4



Introduction of Proposed Resolution

PEBB 2022-13 Allowing A One-time Plan 
Change for Certain 
Subscribers Enrolled in UMP 
Classic

5



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-13
Allowing A One-time Plan Change for Certain 

Subscribers Enrolled in UMP Classic

A subscriber enrolled in PEBB retiree insurance coverage who is enrolled, or whose 
dependent is enrolled, in both Parts A and B of Medicare and the Uniform Medical Plan 
(UMP) Classic is allowed a one-time plan change anytime between December 1, 2022 
and December 31, 2023 (in addition to the annual or a special open enrollment) to elect 
one of the following PEBB retiree insurance coverage options:

• Medicare Advantage (MA) Plan
• Medicare Advantage-Prescription Drug Plan
• Medicare Supplement Plan

The new PEBB medical plan coverage will begin the first day of the month following the 
date the required forms are received.  Non-Medicare enrollees on the subscriber's 
account will remain enrolled in the UMP Classic, except in the case of an MA plan where 
non-Medicare enrollees will be enrolled in a plan with the same contracted vendor.

6



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-13 
Example #1

Example: Rob and Ann are enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B. 
They are both enrolled in UMP Classic.  On December 15, 2022
they submitted their forms to change their enrollment to 
Premera Medicare Supplemental Plan G.

Question: Can Rob and Ann change their enrollment to 
Premera Medicare Supplemental Plan G?  When will the new 
coverage begin?

Yes, Rob and Ann can enroll in Premera Medicare Supplemental 
Plan G on December 15, 2022 using the one-time plan change. 
Their new medical coverage will begin on January 1, 2023.

7



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-13 
Example #2

Example: Mike and Barb are both enrolled in UMP Classic.  Mike is 66 
years old and enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B.  Barb is 64 years old 
and is a non-Medicare dependent.  Mike decides in June 2023 he 
would like to enroll in the UHC PEBB Complete.

Question: Can Mike enroll in UHC PEBB Complete in June 2023?  
When will his new coverage begin?  Can Barb remain in UMP Classic?

Yes, Mike can enroll in UHC PEBB Complete using the one-time plan 
change in June 2023.  If he submits required forms in June 2023, his 
new medical coverage will begin July 1, 2023.  Because Barb is a non-
Medicare enrollee on Mike's account, she will remain enrolled in the 
UMP Classic.

8



Proposed Resolution PEBB 2022-13 
Example #3

Example: Scott and Jean are both enrolled in UMP Classic, and they live in 
Pierce County.  Scott is 64 years old and not enrolled in Medicare.  Jean is 66 
years old and is enrolled in Medicare Parts A and B.  On March 20, 2023, 
Jean decides she would like to enroll in KPWA Medicare Advantage because 
she hasn’t used any benefit for the year. 

Question: Can Jean enroll in the KPWA Medicare Advantage plan?  When 
will her new coverage begin?  Can Scott remain in UMP Classic?

Yes, Jean can enroll in the KPWA Medicare Advantage plan because it’s 
available in her service area and she can use the one-time plan change to 
enroll in the plan.  If she submits the required forms by March 31, 2023, her 
new medical coverage will begin April 1, 2023.  Because Scott is a non-
Medicare enrollee on her account, he will remain enrolled in UMP Classic.

9



Next Steps

• Incorporate Board feedback in the proposed
policies

• Submit feedback by June 20, 2022

• Bring recommended proposed policy
resolution to the Board for action at the
June 30, 2022 Board Meeting

10



Questions?

Stella Ng, Policy and Rules Coordinator

Policy, Rules, and Compliance Section

Employees and Retirees Benefits Division

Stella.Ng@hca.wa.gov

11

mailto:Stella.Ng@hca.wa.gov


Appendix

12



Resolution PEBB 2020-05
Medicare Advantage Prescription Drug 

(MA-PD) Plan Enrollment
(As passed on 5/28/2020) 

Resolved that, if a subscriber elects to enroll in a 
PEBB Program MA-PD plan, any non-Medicare 
enrollees on the account will be enrolled in the 
Uniform Medical Plan (UMP) Classic.

13



Resolution PEBB 2022-03
Medicare Advantage Prescription Drug Plan 
Enrollment During Gap Month(s) (As passed 

on 4/14/22) 

Resolved that, if a subscriber elects to enroll in a 
Medicare Advantage Prescription Drug (MA-PD) plan, 
and the required forms are received by the PEBB 
Program after the date the PEBB retiree insurance 
coverage is to begin, the subscriber and their enrolled 
dependents will be enrolled in Uniform Medical Plan 
(UMP) Classic during the gap month(s) prior to when 
the MA-PD coverage begins.

14



 

 

TAB 8 



Medicare Portfolio

Ellen Wolfhagen, Senior Account Manager
Employees and Retirees Benefits Division
June 9, 2022



Medicare 101

• Part A – covers hospitals

• Part B – covers doctor visits

• Part C – Parts A and B together (managed 
care)

• Part D – Prescription drugs

• Members must pay their Part B premiums 
separately from PEBB coverage

2



PEBB Medicare Portfolio

3

Kaiser WA and 
Kaiser NW 
Medicare

• Kaiser WA –
Medicare Advantage 
(MA) and Original 
Medicare COB plans

• Kaiser NW –
SeniorAdvantage
(MA)

• Creditable drug 
coverage

Uniform Medical 
Plan (UMP) Classic 

Medicare

• Self-insured 
Coordination of 
Benefits (COB) plan 

• Original Medicare 
FFS pays primary on 
medical claims, 
UMP pays 
secondary

• Creditable drug 
coverage, UMP 
pays primary on 
pharmacy claims

UnitedHealthcare 
PEBB Balance and 

PEBB Complete

• Employer group 
Medicare Advantage 
plus Prescription 
Drug (Part D) 
coverage (MA-PD)

• National PPO 
network of 
providers, no 
difference in cost 
share for in-/out-of-
network care

• Lower premiums and 
out-of-pocket costs

• No enrollment 
restrictions or 
additional costs for 
retirees with pre-
existing conditions

Premera
Medicare 

Supplement
Plans F & G

• Supplemental 
(Medigap) plans 
for Medicare 
eligible enrollees 
(retired or 
disabled)

• Helps enrollees 
fill the “gaps” in 
Original Medicare 

• Does not include 
drug coverage



Simple Portfolio Comparison

4

Original 
Medicare

Medicare 
Advantage
KP    UHC

Medicare 
Supplement

Nationwide Coverage Yes No Yes Yes

Medical Deductible Yes No No Yes

Pharmacy Deductible Yes No Yes N/A

Drug Coverage Yes Yes Yes No



Medicare Portfolio Comparison

5

UMP Classic Kaiser NW Senior Adv. Kaiser WA Medicare Adv.

Medical Deductible $250 $0 $0

Max Medical Benefit Out of Pocket $2,500 $1,500 $2,500

Inpatient Services $200/day (per admission) $500/admission $200/day (per admission)

Outpatient Services 15% $50 $200

Outpatient Mental Health Care 15% $30/individual, $15/group $0

Primary Care Office Visit 15% $30 $20

Specialty Care 15% $30 $20

Urgent Care 15% $35 office, $50 ER $20

ER Copay $75 + 15% $50 $65

UHC PEBB Complete UHC PEBB Balance Premera Plan G

Medical Deductible $0 $0 Part B deductible - $233

Max Medical Benefit Out of Pocket $500 $2,000 $233

Inpatient Services $0 $500/admission $0

Outpatient Services $0 $500/admission $0

Outpatient Mental Health Care $0 $15 group/$30 individual $0

Primary Care Office Visit $0 $15 $0

Specialty Care $0 $30 $0

Urgent Care $15 $15 $0

ER Copay $65 $65 $0



Portfolio Comparison – Supplemental Benefits

6

UMP Classic Kaiser NW Senior Advantage Kaiser WA Medicare Advantage

Chiropractic Care 15%, 10 visits $0/visit, 12 visits*
 $15, 12 visits (Non-spinal)

unlimited visits for spinal

Acupuncture 15%/16 visits Not covered $15/visit, 12 visits

Massage Therapy 15%/16 visits Not covered $30/visit, 10 visits

Routine Vision Exams and Hardware

$0 annual exam; $30 copay for 

contact lens fitting

hardware up to $150 every 2 years

$25 annual exam,

hardware up to  $150 every 24 

months

$15 annual exam,

hardware up to $150 ($300) 

every 24 months

Routine Hearing Exams and Hearing Aids
$0 annual exam,

hardware one per ear every 5 years

$35 annual exam,

up to the allowed amount one 

per ear any consecutive 60 

months

$20 annual exam,

up to the allowed amount one 

per ear any consecutive 60 

months 

Gym Membership Not covered Silver and Fit, $0 Silver and Fit, $0

UHC PEBB Complete UHC PEBB Balance

Chiropractic Care

Acupuncture

Massage Therapy $0, 30 visits $15, 30 visits

Routine Vision Exams and Hardware

Routine Hearing Exams and Hearing Aids

Gym Membership Renew Active, $0

$0, 20 combined visits $15, 20 combined visits

$0 annual exam, hardware up to $300 every 2 years 

$0 annual exam, 



Medicare Pharmacy Comparison

7

Pharmacy Deductible $100 $0 $0 $0 (Tier 1) $100 (Tiers 2-4)

Max Pharmacy OOP* $2,000 No OOP Limit No OOP Limit $2,000

Value Tier (UMP only) 5% up to $10 N/A N/A N/A

Tier 1 - Generic 10% up to $25 $20 $20 10% up to $25 $5

Tier 2 - Preferred Brand 30% up to  $75 $40 $40 30% up to $47  $45

Tier 3 - Non-Preferred Brand N/A 50% up to $200 50% or $250 50%   $100

Specialty N/A 50% up to $200 N/A 50% up to $100  $100

UMP Classic 

Medicare

Kaiser NW Senior 

Advantage

Kaiser WA Medicare 

Advantage

United 
PEBB Balance &
PEBB Complete

*OOP = Out of Pocket



Sample Most Expensive Drug Comparison

8

Example Drugs UMP UHC KPWA KPNW

Humira, Enbrel, Stelara, 
Xeljanz, Bosulif, Ibrance, 
Revlimid

Preferred 
brands 
$75/month

Preferred 
brands 
$45/month

Preferred 
brands 
$40/month

Non-preferred 
cost share 
$250/month

Preferred 
brands 
$150/month

Insulin, Ozempic, 
Jardiance

Preferred 
insulin -
$10/month

Preferred 
brands 
$75/month

Preferred 
insulin -
$10/month

Preferred 
brands 
$45/month

Preferred 
insulin -
$35/month

Non-insulin 
brand name 
drugs 
$50% up to 
$250/month

Preferred 
insulin -
$35/month

Brand options 
$40/month



Sample Most Expensive Drug Comparison (cont.)

9

Example Drugs UMP UHC KPWA KPNW

Eliquis, Pradaxa, 
Xarelto

Preferred brands 
$75/month

Preferred brands 
$45/month

Preferred brands 
$40/month

Preferred brands 
$40/month

Advair, Qvar, Spiriva

Flovent

Preferred 
inhalers 
$75/month

(Value Tier 
$10/month)

Preferred 
inhalers 
$45/month 
(different 
formulary but 
therapeutically 
similar)

Preferred 
inhalers 
$40/month

Injectables and 
triple inhalers 
50% up to 
$250/month

Preferred 
inhalers 
$40/month

Injectables and 
triple inhalers 
50% up to 
$250/month



Sample Most Commonly Used Drug Comparison

10

Example Drugs UMP UHC KPWA KPNW

Statins, Ezetimibe, 
Praluent, Repatha

Statins are 
preventive – no 
cost share

Generics – 10% 
Preferred brands 
$75/month

Statins are 
preventive – no 
cost share

Generics – 10% 
Preferred brands 
$45/month

Statins are 
preventive – no 
cost share

Generics – up to 
$20/month

Preferred brands 
up to $250/month

Statins are 
preventive – no 
cost share

Generics – up to 
$15/month

Preferred brands 
require plan 
exception; if 
approved 
$75/month



Sample Most Commonly Used Drug Comparison (cont.)

11

Example 
Drugs

UMP UHC KPWA KPNW

Lisinopril*, 
Losartan*, 
Metoprolol, 
Amlodipine*, 
Hydrochloro-
thiazide*, 
Furosemide*, 
Sertraline*, 
Fluoxetine*, 
Levothyroxine

Generic 
dominated class –
10%/month

* Drugs - Value 
Tier 5%/month

Generic 
dominated class –
$5/month

Generics – up 
to $20/month

Generics – up 
to $15/month



UMP and UHC Comparison Highlights

12

Less Out of Pocket for 

Retirees

•Lower premiums

•No deductible, 

lower maximum 

out-of-pocket 

limits

•Plan option with $0 

retiree cost share

•Reduced pharmacy 

costs

Enriched Benefit 

Design

•More alternative 

benefit options

•Combined and 

increased 

chiropractic and 

acupuncture visit 

limit

• Increased massage 

visit limit

•OTC drug benefit

•Meal delivery 

service benefit

•Enhanced vision 

and hearing aid 

hardware benefit

National Network of 

Medicare Providers

•No difference 

between in-

network vs. out-of-

network cost share

•Extensive provider 

network, allows for 

ease of access to 

care

•Enhanced 

worldwide travel 

benefit

Part D Coverage

•Retained $10 

insulin cost share 

(UMP Classic)

•Retained maximum 

out-of-pocket limit 

(UMP Classic)

• Includes coverage 

of Specialty Drugs

•Expanded National 

pharmacy network

• Includes large 

chains and small 

pharmacy retailers



Kaiser Permanente Networks

• Limited to KP service areas

• KP pharmacies

• No out-of-network coverage

– Except for emergencies

– If KP doesn’t have available providers

13



United Network of Providers

• The cost shares are the SAME whether in network 
(direct relationship with United) or out of network

• Nationwide there are 896,700 in-network providers

• Of those, 346,213 are non-MDs (e.g., physical 
therapists, podiatrists)

14



United Network of Providers

• Any doctor (primary care or specialist) who accepts 
Medicare is covered

– United handles claims from those who bill United directly

– Reimbursement available for providers who don’t bill 
United directly

• Massage therapy is not a Medicare benefit, and 
therefore, considered out of network

– United handles claims from those who bill United directly

– Reimbursement is available for providers who don’t

15



Premera Plan F/G Details

• No drug coverage

• Can see any provider who accepts Medicare

• Nationwide coverage

• Only covers Medicare-covered services

• No “supplemental” benefits (e.g., massage, 
vision, gym membership)

16



Questions?

Ellen Wolfhagen, Senior Account Manager

Employees and Retirees Benefits Division

Ellen.Wolfhagen@hca.wa.gov

17

mailto:email@hca.wa.gov

	briefing book Table of Contents - 6-9-22
	TAB 1
	Agenda 6-9-22 - PEBB
	Member List - PEBB - Updated 5-27-22
	2022 PEB Board Schedule - Code Reviser Version WSR 21-15-079
	TAB 2
	Board by-laws - PEBB - 1-22-21
	TAB 3
	Minutes - PEBB - June 9, 2021 - Final Draft
	TAB 4
	P - Annual Procurement Update - Beth - PEBB - 6-9-22 - Final
	TAB 5
	P - PEBB - UMP RFR 2022 Benefit Year 2023 - Christine - 6-9-22 - Final
	TAB 6
	P - 2023 PEBB Medicare Rates - Sara - Molly - 6-9-22 - Final
	TAB 7
	P - Policy and Rules Development - Proposed PEBB Resolutions - Stella -  6-9-2022 - Final
	TAB 8
	P - PEBB 2022 Medicare Portfolio - Ellen - 6-9-22 - Final

